
JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

MEMORANDUM TO: 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Council Members: 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

FLORIDA 

The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council on Monday, June 16, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers, 11 
North Third Street, Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

Opening Ceremonies: Invocation 
Salute to the Flag 

Roll Call 

I . APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

• Regular City Council Meeting held June 2. 2014 

• City Council Workshop held June 9, 2014 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

3. COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS: 

4. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL: 

Presentation by Milton Locklear, with North Florida Transportation Planning Organization 

5. CITY CLERK: 

Appointment of one member to the Community Redevelopment Agency 

6. CITY MANAGER: 

(a) Monthly Financial Reports - Month of May 2014 

(b) Budget Workshop Schedule 

CC 1406 I 6agn Page I of3 



Memorandum, Mayor and City Council 
City Counci l Agenda for June 16, 2014 

(c) Ratify the Col lective Bargaining Agreement with the International Association of 
Firefighters. Local 2622. Effective June I. 2014 

7. RESOLUTIONS: 

(a) RESOLUTION NO. 1934-2014 

A RESOLUTIO TO MODIFY THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR CITY 
OPERA TING FUNDS 

8. ORDINANCES: 

(a) ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8055- Second Reading 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2. ARTICLE V, DIVISION 5, GENERAL EMPLOYEES. 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, AMENDING SECTION 2-1 62.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
ORDINA CES IN CO FLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

(b) ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8056-Second Reading 

AN ORDINA CE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2. ARTICLE V, DIVISION 6, POLICE OFFICERS. 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, AMENDING SECTION 2-163.2, DEFINITIONS; AMENDING 
SECTION 2-1 63.7, ORMAL RETIREMENT CONDITIONS; AMENDING SECTION 
2-163.8, VESTED TERMINATIO OF MEMBERSH IP; AMENDING SECTION 2-
163.9, AMOUNT OF A PE SION; AMENDING SECTION 2-l 63. I 9A, EARLY 
RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTIO 2-1 63.20, MEMBER CO TRIBUTIONS; 
AME DING SECTION 2-163.31 , RESERVE FOR PENSION PAYMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABI LITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
ORDINA CES I CONFLICT HEREW ITH ; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

(c) ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8057 - First Reading 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AME DI G CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 7, FIREFIGHTERS. 
RETIREME T SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, AME DING SECTION 2-1 64.2, DEFINITIONS; AMEND! G 
SECTIO 2- 164.7. ORMAL RETIREMENT CONDITIONS; AMENDING SECTIO 
2-1 64.8, VESTED TERM! ATION OF MEMBERSHIP; AMENDING SECTION 2-

CC I 406 I 6agn Page 2 of3 



Memorandum, Mayor and City Council 
City Council Agenda for June 16, 2014 

164.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; AMENDING SECTION 2-l 64. I 9A, EARLY 
RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.20, MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS; 
AMENDING SECTION 2-164.31 , RESERV E FOR PENSION PAYMENTS; 
PROVIDIN G FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

GDF: cmm 
06/12/14 

ls/George D. Forbes 
CITY MANAGER 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any molter considered at any meeting, 
such person may need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose. such person may need to ensure that a verbatim 
record of the proceedings is made. which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. 

The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them. Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting. These forms are available at the entrance of 
the City Council Chambers f or your convenience. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk 's Office at (90./) 2./7-6299. 
ext. 10. no later than 12:00 PM. Friday, June 13. 20/.1. 

CC I 406 I 6agn Page 3 of 3 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, June 2, 2014, at 7:00 P.M. 
in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3n1 Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Charlie Latham called the meeting to order. 

OPENING CEREMONIES: 

JACKSONVILI.E 
BEACH 

Invocation was by Counci l Member Vogelsang; followed by the Salute to the Flag. 

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor: William C. Latham 

Council Members: Keith Doherty 
Tom Taylor 

Steve Hartkemeyer 
Phil Vogelsang 

Christine Hoffman 
Jeanell Wilson 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, City Clerk Judy Bullock, and Catherine Martinich, City 
Clerk's Office. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, and passed, to approve the following minutes, 
as presented: 

• Regular City Council Meeting held May 19, 2014 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Counci l Member Keith Doherty -

• Mr. Doherty complemented his friend Mr. Sean Heard, a Jacksonville Beach native, who will be 
representing the United States in Brazil, to officiate at the World Cup. 

Counci l Member Christine Hoffman -

• Ms. Hoffman announced the All Fletcher Class Block Party wi ll be held this coming Friday from 
6:00 until I 0:30 pm, on the Beaches Historical Society grounds. 

Mayor Latham -

• Mayor Latham announced there is a City Council Workshop scheduled for June 9, 2014 at 6:00 pm, 
in the Council Chambers. Mr. Bill Henkins, of Retail Strategies will be presenting. 

CC I 40602min Page I of6 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, June 2, 2014 

• Mayor Latham said he was honored to participate in the Memorial Day celebrations with both the 
Fleet Reserve Association and the Combined American Legion and VFW (Veterans of Foreign 
Wars) celebrations at the Beaches Veterans Memorial Park on Memorial Day. 

• Mayor Latham stated the Never Quit festival was held this past weekend. He was invited to 
participate with the parachute team that conducted several jumps with wounded warriors. He said 
he was honored to jump with Matthew Pennington of Virginia, who lost his leg while serving in 
Iraq. 

• Mayor Latham announced that Governor Scott would be in town tomorrow visiting a Jacksonville 
Beach business, Hashrocket, located at 320 North I 51 Street, Suite 713, at I 0:00 am. 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

Speakers: 

• Ms. Ann Freudenthal , 4021 Palm Way, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
Ms. Freudenthal spoke about her concerns regarding the Richmond Homes PUD, the proposed 
move of the new fencing that was installed, and clearing of green space at Ocean Terrace. 

• Ms. Roberta Moore, 115 South 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 
Ms. Moore stated she is opposed to allowing nudity on Jacksonville Beach. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

City Attorney Susan Erdelyi, requested a meeting pursuant to Florida Statute 286.011 (8) regarding pending 
litigation, Church of Our Savior vs. City of Jacksonville Beach. The Shade Meeting is requested for 
Monday, June 16, 2014, at 5:30 p.m. 

CITY CLERK 

Approve the Reappointment of Deborah White as the Fifth Trustee on the Firefighters' Board of 
Trustees 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the reappointment 
of Deborah White as the fifth Trustee on the Firefighters' Board of Trustees. 

Mr. Forbes explained that this is a ministerial function for the City Council. Two Trustees are 
elected by employees, two are selected by Council, and one appointed by the Trustees. The 
Trustees unanimously voted to reappoint Ms. White to another term on the Firefighters' Board of 
Trustees. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

CITY MANAGER 

CC 140602min Page 2 of6 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, June 2, 2014 

(a) Approve a Draw of $24,000 from the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund to Purchase Power 
OMS Documentation Management Software 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve a Draw of 
$24,000 from the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund to Purchase Power DMS 
Documentation Management Software. 

Mr. Forbes explained that the Equita ble Sharing Fund is one of two funds that the Police 
Department can use for certain expenditures, and the funds are from drug seizures. The software 
will help the department with training records, accreditation standards, and interfaces, allowing 
files to be viewed electronically rather than sending paper documents between agencies. 

Ms. Wilson asked about training of personnel, technical support, licensing, and maintenance 
agreements for the length of the contract. 

Chief Dooley assured the Counci l this software ts a complete package and includes all the 
assistance necessary for the length of the contract. 

Roll ca ll vote: Ayes - Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

(b) Approve the Addition of Production Services to Support the Navy Band July 4•h Concert at 
the Seawalk Pavilion 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the addition of 
production services for the 4th of July holiday to support the Navy Band concert. 

Mr. Forbes thanked Mr. Meadors for scheduling the Navy band and said this is a great patriotic and 
family-friendly event to bring to the City' s July 4th celebration. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

(c) Ratify the Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of 
Police, Effective May 1, 2014 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to ratify the three-year 
Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of 
Police. 

Mr. Forbes briefly explained the three-year contract, the retirement benefits reform, and pay plan. 
He said this ratification would make the Pension program sustainable and is a very fair agreement 
for both the Police Officers and the City. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

CC I 40602min Page 3 of6 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, June 2, 2014 

RESOLUTIONS 

RESOLUTION 0. 1933-2014 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Resolution No. 1933-2014, by title only; 
whereupon Ms. Bullock read the following: 

"A RESOLUTION AME DlNG THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH POSITIO 
CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN FOR MANAGERIAL, PROFESSIONAL, 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND UNCLASSIFIED (NONUNION) CITY POSITIONS, 
EFFECTIVE JUNE 2, 2014." 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor. seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Resolution o. 
1933-2014, amending the Classification and Pay Plan for Managerial, Professional, 
Administrative and Unclassified (Nonunion) City positions, effective June 2, 2014. This 
will reclassify the Public Safety Communications Supervisor, End User System Analyst 
and Golf Course Superintendent Positions, and change the title of one existing Golf Shop 
Attendant to Director of Golf Instruction . 

Mr. Forbes sa id that this is a minor change to the pay plan that reclassifies four positions. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Vogelsang. Wilson. Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

ORDINANCES 

(a) ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8055 - First Reading 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2014-8055, by title only; 
whereupon Ms. Bullock read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISIO 5, GENERAL EMPLOYEES' 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, AMENDlNG SECTION 2-162.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
ORDINANCES lN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE." 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Ordinance o. 
2014-8055. amending Chapter 2, Article Y, Division 5, "General Employees' Retirement 
System'·, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, to clarify the 
provision for Back-DROP. 

CC I 40602min Page 4 of 6 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, June 2, 2014 

Mr. Forbes explained that this is a minor change to the wording in the ordinance correcting an error 
in the current language. and now insuring that all employees are eligible for the Back-DROP. 
Roll call vote: Ayes- Wilson. Doherty. Hartkemeyer, Hoffman. Taylor, Vogelsang. and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

(b) ORDI ANCE NO. 2014-8056 - First Reading 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance o. 2014-8056. by title only; 
whereupon Ms. Bullock read the following: 

"AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORJDA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISIO 6, POLICE OFFICERS' 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, AMENDING SECTION 2-163.2, DEFINITIONS; AMENDING 
SECTION 2-163.7, NORMAL RETIREMENT CONDITIONS; AMENDING 
SECTIO 2-163.8, VE TED TERMI ATION OF MEMBERSHIP; AMENDING 
SECTIO 2-163.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; AMENDING SECTION 2-
163.19A, EARLY RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.20, MEMBER 
CONTRIBUTIONS; AME DING SECTION 2-163.31, RESERVE FOR PE SION 
PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF ORDI ANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE." 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Ordinance o. 
2014-8056, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 6, Police Officers' Retirement 
System.,, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

Mr. Forbes explained that v hen the City Council ratified the Union Contract with the Police, it 
included all of the pension agreement in the Union Contract. 

Roll call vote: Ayes - Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffinan, Taylor, Vogelsang. Wilson, and Mayor 
Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business coming before the Council, Mayor Latham adjourned the meeting at 7:32 
p.m. 

Submitted by: Catherine Martinich 
City Clerk's Office 

Approval: 

CC 140602min 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Date: Junel6 2014 

Page 5 of5 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 
Presentation on the Jacksonville Beach Retail Study 

Monday, June 9, 2014-6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

Mayor Latham called the workshop to order at 6:00 PM. 

The following City Council members were in attendance: 

Chris Hoffman 
Phil Vogelsang 
Keith Doherty 
Steve Hartkemeyer 
Jeanell Wilson 
Tom Taylor 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, and Cit 

Purpose of Workshop 

The purpose of the workshop was for a 
Jacksonville Beach Retail Study. 

Mayor Latham explained that two consultants w 
is focused on the Central Business District an 

,....,_,..-t ality Inc. (Jim Peters) who 

Mayor Latham advised 
conducted. The Council 
questions from the p h 

ins) who is presenting data 

his firm had conducted and explained that they are in the 
itment (copy of presentation allached). 

sales trends rising and displayed the retail market within a 5, 10, and 15-minute 
sonville Be.ch. Mr. Hankins also explained that higher end retailers are going into 

stores. 

It was noted that Beach consumers include residents, college students. visitors. and 

The following persons spoke: 

• Mike Stang, 1020 19th Street North, Jacksonville Beach 
• Ken Marsh, 2027 Gail Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 

WS 140609min Page I of 2 



Minutes of City Council Work.shop 
held on Monday, June 9, 2014 

• Sam Veal, 209 South 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach 
• Sandi Golding, 1203 North 18th A venue, Jacksonville Beach 
• Diana Gardner, 3504 Bay Island Circle, Jacksonvi lle Beach 
• Bruce Thomason, PO Box 50556, Jacksonville Beach 
• George Candler, 507 South 16th A venue, Jacksonville Beach 
• Darrell Shields, 315 North 18th Street, Jacksonville Beach 

During discussion, Councilmembers expressed concern regarding small.AO~~ 
overall goal to find businesses that would fit the community, and the 
that will draw customers from neighboring communities. 

The workshop adjourned at 7:02 PM. 

Submitted by: Judy L. Bullock 
City Clerk 

WS I 40609min 

June 16 2014 

Page 2 of2 



North Florida 
T1•nspo1t•tlo11 1'1•1111111, 01,•nlzatlon 

PLAN • ,UNO • MO•ILIZIE 

Transportation Improvement Program 
Fiscal Years 2014/15 - 2018/19 

Beaches Draft Supplement 

1022 Prudential Drive• Jacksonville, Florida 32207 • T 904.306.7500 • F 904.306.7501 • www.northfloridatpo.com 



North Florida TPO Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2014115- 2018119 

Phase 
Fund 

Source 2014115 2015116 

AT\.ANTIC BLVD (SR 10) AT ICWW BRIDGE - 4343301 
BIKE LANEJSIDEWALK 

Responsible Agency: FOOT 

PE DIH 1,001 2,305 
PE HSP 226,000 0 

CST DIH 0 0 
CST HSP 0 0 

Total 227,001 2,305 

Prior Cost< 2014115 0 Future Cost> 2018119 

2016117 

0 
0 

13,093 
1,356, 113 
1,369,206 

0 

BEACH BLVD (US 90 I SR 212) FROM SAN PABLO ROAD TO SOUTH 12TH ST. - 4319621 
LANDSCAPING 

Responsible Agency: FOOT 

PE DIH 2,300 0 
CST DIH 85, 125 85,125 
CST OS 0 118,000 

CST DOR 0 1,426,772 
Total 87,425 1,629,897 

Prior Cost< 2014115 278,425 Future Cost> 2018119 

SHERRY DRIVE AT\.ANTIC BEACH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - 4343431 
SIDEWALK 

Responsible Agency: FOOT 

PE TALU 0 0 

CST TALU 0 0 

CST SA 0 0 

Total 0 0 

Prior Cost< 2014115 0 Future Cost> 2018119 

Draft April 29, 2014 A-1 

0 
58,888 

0 

0 
58,888 

0 

87,002 
0 
0 

87,002 

0 

2017/18 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

2018/19 Total 

"Non-SIS" 
Length: 1.549 Ml 

0 3,306 
0 226,000 
0 13,093 
0 1,356,113 

0 1,598,512 

Total Project Cost 1,598,512 

"Non-SIS" 
Length: 2.208 mi 

0 2,300 
0 229,138 
0 118,000 
0 1,426,n2 
0 1,776,210 

Total Project Cost 2,054,635 

"Non-SIS" 
Length: 1.002 Ml 

0 87,002 
337,555 337,555 
223,922 223,922 
561,477 648,479 

Total Project Cost 648,479 

Duval County State Highway Projects (FDOT) 



North Florida TPO Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2014115 - 2018119 

Fund 
Phase Source 2014115 2015116 2016117 2017/18 2018119 Total 

TIMUCUAN TRAIL FROM KINGSLEY CONNECTOR TO LOOP ONLY - 4084943 •Non-Sis• 

BIKE PATHITRAIL Length: .50 
Responsible Agency : FOOT 

CST TALT 0 867,716 0 0 0 867,716 
CST TALU 0 1,302,452 0 0 0 1,302,452 

CST SA 0 26,500 0 0 0 26,500 

Total 0 2,196,668 0 0 0 2,196,668 

Prior Cost< 2014115 268,801 Future Cost> 2018119 0 Total Project Cost 2,465,469 

TIMUCUAN TRAIL (A1A) FROM SHAD CREEK BRIDGE TO FT. GEORGE TRAILHEAD - 43-W141 •Non-Sis• 

BIKE PATHITRAIL Length: .557 Ml 
Responsible Agency: FOOT 

PE DIH 3,000 0 0 0 0 3,000 

CST TALT 423,090 0 0 0 0 423,090 

CST OIH 51 ,500 53,000 54,550 0 0 159,050 

CST ACTA 83,936 0 0 0 0 83,936 

Total 561 ,526 53,000 54,550 0 0 669,076 

Prior Cost< 2014115 199,015 Future Cost> 2018119 0 Total Project Cost 868,091 

TIMUCUAN TRAIL FR FT. GEORGE TRAILHEAD TO HUGUENOT PARK - 43-W2S1 -Non-Sis• 

BIKE PATHITRAIL Length: .450 Ml 

Responsible Agency: FOOT 

PE DIH 50,000 50,000 0 0 0 100,000 

PE TALU 500,000 0 0 0 0 500,000 

Total 550,000 50,000 0 0 0 600,000 

Prior Cost< 2014115 0 Future Cost> 2018119 0 Total Project Cost 600,000 

Draft April 29, 2014 A-2 Duval County State Highway Projects (FOOT) 



APPENDIX I 
Abbreviations & Acronyms 

A1-1 



FAA 

FHWA 

FTA 

JAA 

JTA 

SA/STJAA 

PLN 

PD&E 

PE 

Ra.N 

CST 

DSB 

MSC 

ABBREVIATIONS AND FUNDING SOURCES 

AGENCIES 

Federal Aviation Administration 

Federal Highway Administration 

Federal Transit Administration 

Jacksonville Aviation Authority 

Jacksonville Transportation Authority 

SL Augustine/St. Johns County Airport Authority 

PROJECT PHASES 

Planning 

Project, Development & Environment Study 

Preliminary Engineering 

Right-0f-Way Acquisition 

Construction 

Design Build 

Miscel aneous 

A1-2 



RRU 

INC 

ENV 

ACBR 

ACEN 

ACFO 

ACIM 

ACSA 

ACSE 

ACSH 

ACSS 

BJP 

BNBR 

BNDS 

BNIR 

BRAG 

BRRP 

Railroad/Ut~ities 

Contract Incentives 

Environmental 

FUNDING SOURCES 

Advance Construction (BRT) - Federal Bridge Replacement 

Advance Construction Equity Bonus National Highway 

Advance Construction for High Priority 

Advanced Constructim Interstate 

Advanced Constructim Transportation Management Areas 

Advanced Constructim Enhancement 

Advanced Constructim Hazard Elimination 

Advanced Constructim Safety 

Better Jacksmville Plan 

State Bonds (Statewide Bridges) 

Bond funding State 

Interstate R/W and Bridge Bonds 

Bridge Replacement 

State Bridge Repair and Rehabilitation 

A 1-3 



BZAC 

CIGP 

CM 

DDR 

DORF 

DI 

DIH 

DITS 

DPTO 

DS 

EB 

EBNH 

FAA 

FTA 

GMR 

GRSC 

HPP 

HRRR 

Federal Bridge Replacement - Off System 

County Incentive Grant Program 

Congestion Mitigation 

District Dedicated Revenue (Gas Tax effective January 1, 1991) 

District Dedicated Matching Revenue Funds 

Statewide lnternntrastate Highways 

State In-House Proctict Support 

District lntenigent Transportation Systems 

District Public Transportation Office 

State Primary Highways and PTO 

Equity Bonus 

Equity Bonus - National Highway 

Federal Aviation Administration 

Federal Transit Administration 

General Revenue for Strategic lntermodal System 

Growth Management of SCOP 

High Priority Projects 

High Risk Rural Road 

A1-4 



HSP 

IMAC 

JAA 

LF 

LFR 

LFRF 

LOOT 

MG 

NHAC 

PKBD 

PKYI 

PLHD 

RHP 

SA 

SE 

SH 

SIBG 

SIB1 

SR 

Highway Safety Program 

Interstate Maintenance 

Jacksonville Airport Authority 

Local Funds 

Local Funds/Reinbursable 

Local Funds/Reinbursable - Future 

Local Option Gas Tax 

Mininum Guarantee 

National Highway System 

Turnpike Master Bond Fund 

Turnpike Improvement 

Public Lands Highway Discretionary 

Rail-Highway Safety Crossings - Prot.. Dev. 

Transportation Management Areas 

Transportation Enhancement Activities related to any Surface Transportation Program 

Hazard Elimination 

SIB funds - Growth Management 

State Infrastructure Bank 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) Railroad Hazard Elimination 

A1-5 



SS 

STP 

SU. XU 

TDTF 

TMA 

TRIP 

XA 

XU, SU 

Any safety improvement eligible under the Section 130 Railway-Highway Crossings 
Program and the Section 152 Hazard Elimination Program (allocated by statutory formula) 

Surface Transportation Program 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) in urban areas with a population of over 200,000 

Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund (80%1 FederaV20% State) 

Transportation Management Areas - Areas with a population of over 200,000 

Transportation Regional Incentive Program 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) in any urban areas. 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) in urban areas > 200k 

A1-6 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

City of June 11 , 20 14 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6299 ext. #10 

904.247.6250 ext. #11 

Fax: 904.247.6256 

E-Mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

Judy L. Bullock, City Clerk ~ FROM: 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Appoint of one member to the Community Redevelopment Agency. 

BACKGROUND: 

The term of Bill Hillegass on the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) will 
expire on June 17, 2014. Mr. Hillegass was originally appointed to the CRA in May 
1993 and he has requested that Council consider him for reappointment. Mr. 
Hillegass' s updated application is attached for your review. 

Interviews for Board members were held on December 13, 20 13, and June 4, 20 14, 
with Mayor Latham participating in both sets of interviews. In addition to Mr. 
Hillegass' s application, there are two applicants, Mr. Knight and Mr. Linster, who 
selected the Community Redevelopment Agency as their first choice for appointment 
and their applications are attached, as follows: 

• William ·'Bilr· Hillegass 
• Rick Knight 
• Kris Linster 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that Council reappoint Mr. Hillegass for a new four-year term on 
the Redevelopment Agency; or appoint one of the other applicants for a four-year 
term, which will expire on June 17, 2018. 

Attachments 

/jib 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3n1 Street 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904)247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchft.net 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 
Personal Information (Plea.se print or type) 

Name: __ W_l_L_,,l~I #4-,t_,1'1~_6_, __ f/_,_'-_UE_C----'-A-_§_ Home Phone: C/ 0 'f d> 3 J" (,. g 39 
HomeAddress: 373'1 Dt.tt.JA--<- D{lfv~ :1A-CK..So~v'1CA.E &4<.H- FL 

--=~ ......... "---'----------""""T'",--=-~;..-=--~__;.____.;._-=-=--.;.....;;...-__;.__ 
E-Mail Address: _6_1 _<.._L _H-_~_fk_fl_-_c __ P._~_._C_o_M__ FAX: -9+-'0""'--L.<f_;)._'f.:,_<-.............,;8' ....... G.__<t._..1 ____ _ 

Business: ___ C_P_Jr_____________ BusinessPhone: 204~Y4o7/J 
Business Address: _....tf_0-_7 ____ 3 __ fl_O_~_'T_tl._ff_r_.._/Jl_o_(2_T"H-___ , ___..0 ..... A-.......__C._K_~....;...b.._N_ll_1 t.<£~--8'""'€-"A-_<_H__.;.{ 

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? cv)tes 0 No If yes, length of time: 
Are you a registered voter? ~Yes 0 No If yes, what County: 
Do you own property in the City? 9"'Yes D No If yes, address: 
Do you hold a public office? 0 Yes ~No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? O Yes f¥'No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? £¥Yes 0 No If yes, Board Name: 
Have you been convicted of a felony? D Yes ()('No If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? 0 Yes GYNo If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? O Yes crlro 

If yes, please provide details: ----------------------------

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a ·1·. second choice with a "2·, etc.) 

I Plannlng Commission 
Pension Trustee 

Please list City meetings you have attended: -----------------------
Ct i~ COl..ftJGtLJ C'~A) ~ONING 5ctMt0 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qua.Jifications) ( .P ,4-- ~D 0 rJ)d"C I ,+(,,.(,..y 
a..c= L'4-J'Ei) Ac T1 "1 l-1 E:"S f'l1 A-N't VEtffil o E Comm CA tJ 11 i' 

Education: ---"-H'--"1-=G-"'"H-""---_.S_c-'--Ht>~c) L'"------"-8_...JS_.....,lfo"""-'-f'__.k-=~;;;._-_N_IJ_'l __ -_l_'i_,.:;.....j> _______ _ 
Co<.-t5""£-t.<S '11B ro(lc.e ,ic-M:>e~Y -/e:t7.,_ 

/9-U. 

Page 1of3 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont) 

State Reporting Reauirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

I 

Race 

0 African-American 
0 Asian/Pacific Islander 
0 American Indian/Alaskan Native 

lcaucasian 
0 Hispanic 
D Not Known 

Gender 

D female 
it' Male 

Physically Disabled 

D Yes 
evtQo 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies} and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date Applica~&>-1 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: 0 t~SG 0 n 
Interviewed on: ___ _,L__ ..... _...,,AJL....>O, '-~-~~~4"'-"L.f_,b_ ...... M'---.._.J._~ CJY\ C-~ tt · 

1-E.ligible for appointment O Not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: 

Appointed to: ------------ -------

Appointed to: ------- ------------

Appointed to: 

Page 2of 3 

Date: 

Date: ------------

Date: ------------



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: ci clerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Received 
Appl ication for Appointment to City Boards MAY 2 8 201\ 

Business Address: 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 

~ 
~ 

Yes 

~ 
Yes 

No 
No 

~ 
No 

~ 

If yes, length of time: __________ _ 
If yes, what County: ___________ _ 

If yes, address: _ 
If yes, Office name. _ 

If yes, position: -------------
If yes, Board Name: ___________ _ 
If yes, provide date: ____ _______ _ 
If yes, provide date: ___________ _ 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the managemenUowners~ any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~· 

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a "1", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

Plannin Commission 
Pension Trustee 

Please list the rKf City ~ngs ~ have, attended: . 

e> f EU '-j Ptc E' 7'C.t? p-=r 

Education: 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 Page 1 of 3 



5rAVf°" e>f"} ~~· t\ -\-rlA.s+Rr t!JtJ 1-~~ 

f M-:t+ -t p,-\'4~ \o ('«\A\v'J ~\ t>:ul-~c9. , 
Off.~\1A\~ f\\ool(\- % i \f; ~~&~\J~0~F-'1)'11)£~ 

A- ~·Tl-~ ' 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses. 

Race 

I African-American f.caucasian 

I Asian/Pacific Islander I Hispanic 

I American Indian/Alaskan Nati\€ I Not Known 

Gender 

I Female 

f(Male 

Physically Disabled 

I Yes 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition , any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to fi le a financial disclosure form (Form1 ) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am will ing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may resu lt in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, 1f 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fu lfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoin plete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

sb-~lrL\ 
Date 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

No If not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: - - ---------------

Appointed to: Date: _ _ ___ ______ _ 

Appointed to: Date: 

Appointed to: Date: 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 Page 2 of 3 



I 

l--

City of Jecbonvtlle Beach 
Oftlce of the City Clert 
11 North ,.. 8trMt 
.-uo.Mlle Buch, Florid• 32250 

Appllcdon for Appointment to City Boards 
(~print or fWe) 

OCT 2 3 2013 

City Clerk 

E..._.. Add,...: kcliottlrOtwracon.com 

Bualnea: Torracon Consultants. Inc. 

Home Phone: 1 (904) 588-3057 

FAX: NIA 

Buslnea Phone: 1 <904> 90Q.6178 

Bualnea Add,...: IHI flodda Mlolnq Wyd. W .. lylt! pot. Jlcklooyllt. FL 3UIZ 

Ellafbll!ty 

Ale you a resident d the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own Pl operty In the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Ale you c::umtntly serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 

x Yes 
x Yes 
0 Yes 
0 Yes 
0 Yes 
0 Yes 
0 Yes 
D Yes 

0 No 
0 No 
)( No 
)( No 
)( No 
)( No 
)( No 
x NIA 

")191. length d GQ?!h! ~ 
If )191, what County: mm. 
lf)191,addresa: ___________ _ 

If )191, omce name: -----------If )191, poaltion: ___________ _ 

If )191, Board Name: ---------
If )191, provide date: ---------
If )191, provide date: ----------

Potentt.I Conflfct of lntet..t: Have you fNflt been engaged In the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City d Jac::ksonvile Beach? D Yes x No 
lfyes,pleaaeprovidedetails: ________________________ ~ 

Aulllftcatlona (Brlelfiy dwrl>e ~ ~ . .... or qwllfcallorWI) I Mil !ht fdl!M EnQi'M"'tlA Stry!cM !Md fgr Ngrll Elgddl wllh 

rlfCN!O raw.,. 1 hm, dlgm !n El"*-"•11 m "'umwwty qf Ned\ flgdda. Sqnt qfmy clft.tD.dlv 1C1MMM 1ncMt 111 ••m ctmP IOd 
""'••IQ!• fqr OM IOd ......., mm!nr*E IOd aMi••gm l!t flgddl ftt1rlm Cqdt 'P..., gmplense""' QRdt IOd qlw Ind!,..,, 
•tdlrda IM1J1LEEQNIOd ' ,qlw w in'Petr·, ' wl!fv&.Mplw•!dlrdaq11w1FFQ'P1rloocw••tuft*n 

Education: University of North Florida-Civil Engineering, Florida Board of Professional Engineers-Engineer Intern 
OUallflcations: LEED AP BO+C, Construction Specifications Institute-Construction Documents Technologist 
Experience: Terracon Consultants, Inc., 2010-present 

Page 1of3 

--------- ---



Appllc.tlon for Appointment to City Boards (cont) 

Mt Btportloa Rtaulr!mftl 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary c:A State 
dladoslng race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

I 

Ba 
0 African.American 
D Asian/Paciftc Islander 
0 American Indian/Alaskan Native 

x Caucasian 
0 Hispanic 
0 NotKnown 

Gender 

0 Female 
)( Male 

Phvsjca!lv Oilabled 

0 Yes 
)( No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, ata1es: •1t ii the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any peraon.9 Your 
application when fled will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member c:A a board of any political subdivision (except members c:A solely advisory bodies) and all members cl 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration c:A the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am wiling to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is aufflcient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, Incomplete or mlaJeading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result In my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated aervloes. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties c:A the omce. 
Applications are submitted to the City Councl when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I dedare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

October 22. 2013 
Date 

'ifl.··- ······•» 
Date application received: J 0 - .2. .3 -..2o / 3 
Interviewed on: / 2. - tf - d.QJ 3 

\j. Eligible for appointment ..lNot ellglble[or appointment, 
·ex~anation: . 

I 

Appointedro: ------------------

Appointed to: ------------------

Appointed to: ------------------

Date: ---------

Date: ---------

Date: ----------

Page 2 of 3 



KRISTOPHOR C. LINSTER, El, LEED AP BD+C, CDT 
FACILITIES ENGINEERING SERVICES-NORTH FLORIDA LEAD 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
Mr. linster it currently wortdng as the Facilities Lead in the Jacksonville 
Office. WhNe earning his undergr8dullte degree in Civil Engineering at the 
University of North Florida, Mr. Uniter developed a strong understanding 
for the engineering industry. Mr. Linster has a general knowtedge of all 
phases of engineering including, structural design, materials testing, 
economics of engineering, and COit efficient design. 

Mr. Uniter practices in the areas of specifying, bidding, project 
administration of various building enclosure and waterproofing projects 
including project submittal review, documenting and troubie..shooting field 
conditions, WUFI software modeling, and product research. Additional 
reaponai>illties include construction monitoring and commissioning 
observation and reporting on commercial buildings and educational 
facilities, as wel as overseeing Mter infiltration testing projects. 

During his tenure, Mr. Uniter has also been involved in periodic quality 
and contrect fulfillment observlltions of re-roofing projects and new 
construction installations. Thia included providing detailed written reports 
encompaaing deficiencies and observations, as well as coordinating 
correctionl with on-site supervisors. He has allo been involved with pre
bid and pre-work meetings with clients and contractors. 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Sh•nda J•ckaonvllle North, J.ckaonvllle, FL 
Mr. Linster wa the Project Manager for the building enclosure plan and 
specification review of the Shanda Jacksonville North project. This 
206,700 total square foot building is a st.te c:I the art facility. The~ ii 
composed of phenolic resin rain screen wal panels, prefiniahed aluminum 
composite wall panels, and aluminum curtain wall and storefront. The 

roof win exhibit a cutting edge garden roof system that will give the 
building a natural view for the patients from the windows on the floors 

above. 

lnnov•tJon Hub, Galneavllle, FL 
Mr. Linater wa the Project Manager for the building enclosure 
commiuloning of the Innovation Hub. The 46,000sf LEED Gold building 
conailt of IM>a, offices, meeting and support apace wlll aerve as a 
business incubator for the many new companies being developed around 
univerlity discoveries. It has ftexl:>le 6ry and wet laboratol ies and office 
apece. The project was commillioned In compliance with LEED v2.2 
EAp1 and EAc3 to achieve Gold certification. 

Shrlners Hospitals for Children, Tamp11, FL 
Mr. Llnster generated plans and apecificationa for the reroof of this facility. 
Field work necessary for the design was accomplished in accordance with 
state and local governing bodies and in accordance with FM Global 

Educ.tion 
s.chelotl of Sdlita In CM 
EogiillNl'tig, ~olNotth 
Rorlde. ..t.:Qon""9, FL 

Registration• 
Engineer...,,., 
USGBC- LEED AP IO+C 
RCl-~RoolONIMr 
(RRO) 
AWCI- c.t6d EIFS ~ 
(CE/) 
CSt-eon.tndon Docl#nenCI 
T«:l'1'tOlogltt (CDT} 

Atflllationa 
A""'**7 SodltyolCM ~ 
U.S. G'"'7 ~ Councl 
RC/ 
AWCI 



requirements. The new roofing system was composed d an inverted roof membrane assembly with fully 
adhered polyvinyl chloride (PVC) single ply waterproofing membrwle and mechanically attached PVC 
membrane wih a compoeite concrete topped extruded polystyrene insulation overburden. Construction 
administration services are included in the scope d WOik. These services include reviewing shop drawings, 
periodic inspections, materials list, tapered layout, drawings, pay applications, change orders and obtained al 
close-out documents. 

Miami Martina Ballpark, Miami, FL 
Mr. Linster was the Project Manager for the building enclosure commissioning of this state of the art 
900,000sf ballparit and pariting garages. The facility seats 37,000 fans, and includes retractable stadium roof, 
suites, locker rooms, concessions, offices, and rehab~itationltraining areas. The project was commissioned in 
compliance with LEED v2.2 EAp1 and EAc3 to achieve Gold certification. 

US Department d Veterans Administration Medical Cllnlc, Cape Coral, FL 
Mr. Linster was the Project Manager for the building enclosure commissioning of the Lee County Florida VA 
Outpatient Clinic. The 220,000 groa square foot, state-of-the-art primary and specialty care center that will 
house mental health services, diagnostic radiology, laboratory services, audiology, cardiology with cardiac 
non-invasive diagnostic services, urology, GI, orthopedics, ophthamology, dermatology, minor surgery, and 
advanced imaging including CT, MRI, ftuorolcopy, ultrasound, nuclear medicine, mwnmography, and 
vascular Doppler ultrasound. The project was commissioned in accordance with LEED 2.2 EApr1 
(Fundamental Commissioning) and LEED 2.2 EAcr3 (Enhanced Commissioning). 

Charlotte County Public Schools Rod Management Survey, Punta Gorda, FL 
Mr. Linster provided a comprehensive roof survey to 25 schools I maintenance facilities totaling over 2.3 
million sq. ft. in the Char1otte County Public Schools district. The responsibility of our staff was to survey the 
roofs and identify defects and deficiencies. A comprehensive report waa produced for the information d the 
owner that included a description of the components of the existing roof system for each building, a general 
description of the remedial worit required, a 5-year budget for replacement and present year maintenance 
costs & roof plans showing the general locations d the remedial work required. GAF follow-up warranty 
inspections & aerial photographs of each campus' roof were also required for this project. 

Clay County MOB, Middleburg, FL 
Mr. Linster was the Project Manager for the building enclosure plan and specification review d the Clay 
County MOB project This facility wil provide a much more convenient point d access to medical help for 
residents in this area of rural Clay County. The ~ ii compoeed of an energy efficient exterior insulation 
finish systems (EIFS), cultured stone and ltucco. The roof ii a highly reftective thermoplastic polyolefin (TPO) 
roof membrane. Mr. Linster also provided construction monitoring throughout the construction procesa as well 
as pefform water infiltration testing in general accordance with ASTM E1105 to ensure proper installation of 
the building enclosure components. 

First Presbyterian Church of Lake Wales, FL 
Mr. Linster was retained to provide a leak investigation on the exterior brick cladding and lower roof levels of 
this facility. Wfl.er infiltration testing methods such as AAMA 501 .2 and ASTM E1105 were utllized to conduct 
the investigation. Findings & recommendations for building enclosure repair were recommended in the 
report provided to the owner. 

University of Florida EH&S Addition, Galneavllle, FL 
Mr. Linater was the Project Manager for the building enclosure commissioning of the Innovation Hub.The 
4,900sf LEED Gold addition to the current otfic:e building. The project was commissioned in compliance with 
LEED v3.0 EAp1 and EAc3. 

Lemon Bay High School, Punta Gorda, FL 
Mr. Linster was retained by the general contractor d this project to act as their building envelope consultant at 
the request of the owner. Wtbr testing was conducted on mock up window installations, d~ng & submittal 
reviews were performed and building envelope inspections were performed on a weekly basis. 



University of Florida Gymnatlca Renovation and Addition, Oalnavllle, Fl 
Mr. Linlter was the Project Manager for the building encloaure commiaaioning of the 18,780lf addition to UF's 
O'Connel Center. The project ii being commillioned in compliance with LEED v3.0 EAp1 and EAc3 to 
echieve minimum Gold but on target to achieve Platinum certification. 

Polk Sblte College Winter Haven Campus, Crtmlnal Justice Bulldlng, Winter Haven, FL 
Mr. Uniter provided construction contract adminiltn1tion & periodic inspection services during the rod 
replacement of this building. 

University of Florida Chemical Engineering Addition, Galnesvllle FL 
Mr. Unater was the Project ~ for the building endosure commilaioning of this 9,800 SF LEED Gold 
addition to the existing Chemical Engineering building and consist of of'ficet, meeting and support apace. The 
project was commissioned in compliance with LEED v3.0 EAp1 and EAc3 to achieve Gold certification. 

Port Char1otte High School, Port Charlotte, FL 
Mr. Linater provided field wont for the pt.na and specifications for the roof replacement project, conatruc::tion 
administration and periodic inspectiona were also performed. 

University of Florida Broward Dinning (Fresh Fooda), Gainesville FL 
Mr. Linlter ii the Project Manager for the building enclosure commiuioning this 5,700 SF LEED Gold pro;ect 
and conlilt of kitchen, dining and support apecea. The project is being commissioned in compliance wlh 
LEED v3.0 EAp1 and EAc3 to achieve Gold certification. 

Vineland Elementary School, Rotonda, FL 
Mr. Linlter provided construction adminiatration & periodic inapec:tion services during the roof replacement of 
Buildings C, D, F-H & X of this school completed in July 2010. 

University of Florida Cory VIiiage Commona Replacement Cx. Galn•vllle, FL 
Mr. Uniter was the Project Manager for the building enclosure commissioning of the new 10,000 SF, multi
purpose Commons facility at the Cony Village Graduate and Family housing complex. Staffofd Conauling 
Engineers provided design phase and conatructionlacceptance Cx services for the building envelope 
systems. The pro;ect waa commiuioned in compliance with LEED v3.0 EAp1 and EAc3 to achieve Gold 
c:ertific:ation. 

Veterinary Education & Reuarch Building, Oalnesvllle, FL 
Mr. Uniter performed the building envelope commiuioning servic:ea for this new veterinaty & research 
building on the University of Florida campua. SeMc:es incfuded apecification reviews, submittal reviews & 
weekly inspections. 



• t .- z.-r- . ~· -- "" ,,, I t ~ 
f J 4u tnttfnrtb nn tl lt l. 

1Cristnp4nr Clt4arlts liusttr "\\ 
t4t h:tgrt:t 

~ fiurqtlnr nf ltritttrt 
Qthril ftqJitlttring 

ilagna Q!um &nht 
mth all t4t riglfts anh pritriltgrs tlJtnmdn apptrtabrittg. 

Jn Bttntss B4trtnf, tqts hiplnma, hulu stp.th, i,u 
btm tssttth anh tlJt stal af iJJt 1tninrrsttg atfuth. 

Joab lit~~ .Clrutrn apa rr"••nbda .r~ iam1tt llf~ 
(!a11lp at CL1+potlag, £qb&mtq. .U <loutrmtta c Jltbaatllt, .fimtR. ~ ~ 111 llf .Aprt1, A.I., 21J1D. 

((_~ . Q __ A_ -..... ..:a.~ 

~-tW-
,-.-::1. .,.:i:" .... 

,.::i. ... _:.;...=,· - ·~ .... 
. ~. r1' ;--;,;: ... "'" -;,;;,. . I: ." -t>.. 

. .:.::~ . -~L ~;p. 
~. ;'='·o::::~·-.r~ \b 
~ ~~~~~~ -. . . ,_; 
~.· "•. \ :A:'' _... ~ \ .. . ...-. 

• • • • t 

..;"..: J .·~ ~ . • :;::-.)_ ... V. , > -.. ~·":J:~ ·' .: .... 

•asw 

~ti~ 



d z 

j 



JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

City of June 6, 2014 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247 6274 

Fax: 904.270 1 642 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

George D. Forbes 

CITY MANAGER 

Harry E. Royal 
FINANCE OFFICER 

RE: Monthly Financial Reports - Month of May 2014 

The Monthly Financial Reports for the month of May are being furnished for your 

information and perusal. These reports can be found on the "Reports and 
Information" portion of this Agenda. 

If you have any questions concerning these reports , please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Harry E. Ro 
FINANCE OFFICER 



I 

JACl<SONVI LLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6268 

Fax: 904.247.6276 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

TO: The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 

FROM: George D. Forbes 
City Manager 

SUBJECT: Budget Workshop Schedule 

DATE: June 9, 2014 

Action Requested 

Approve the Council Budget Workshop Schedule. (Attached) 

Background 

As in the past, this year's budget workshops will be held in the conference room 
located behind the City Council chamber. 

In addition to the Council Tour, this year's Budget Workshop Schedule provides 
for 4 workshops over a two-week period. It is designed to be informative for the 
Council and, by spreading the workshops out over two weeks, make it easier on 
the Council members' schedules. 

Action Requested 

Adopt the Budget Workshop Schedule as proposed by the City Manager in a 
memo dated June 9, 2014. 

Attachment 
GDF:tr 



Budget Workshop Calendar 

Date 

Friday, 8-1 
1 :30-5:00 p.m. 

Monday, 8-4 

4 :00-6:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, 8-5 

6:00-8:00 p.m. 

Monday, 8-11 
6:00-8:00 p.m. 

Tuesday, 8-12 
6:00-8:00 p.m. 

Topic/Department Reviewed 

Budget Tour of the City 

Executive & Legislative 

Planning & Development 

Finance 

Human Resources 

Fire 

Police 

Public Works 

Beaches Energy Services 

Parks & Recreation 

ALL WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM BEHIND 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER. 

Tentative Dates for Budget Adoption: 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Wednesday, September 3 

City Hall, 6:00 p.m. 

Monday, September 8 

City Hall, 6:00 p.m. 

These dates may change, subject to the dates chosen by the School Board 
and the County. 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

City of MEMORANDUM 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6263 

Fax: 904 247.6169 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: George D. Forbes, City Manager 

FROM: Karen Nelson, Human Resources Director 

SUBJECT: Ratification of IAFF Contract, Effective June 1, 2014 

DATE: June 4, 2014 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Ratify the Collective Bargaining Agreement with the International Association of 

Firefighters, Local 2622, effective June 1, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

The City and the IAFF began negotiations in May of 2013 for a three-year 

contract. 12 bargaining sessions were held and on May 30, 2014, the union held 

a vote among its members and ratified the contract. Major provisions of the 

agreement are as follows: 

Duration 

• A three-year contract effective June 1, 2014 and expiring May 31 , 2017. 

• An agreement to re-open Article 34 (Salaries) on May 31 , 2016 for year 

three of the contract. 

• An effective date of July 21 , 2014 for Article 9 (Pension). 

Wages 

• Provides for a one-time increase on the effective date of 1 % for all 

bargaining unit employees. 

• Adopts a Pay Plan that provides for a merit increase upon annual 

evaluation of 2%-3% of the midpoint within the range. 

• Provides for a lump sum award, based on merit, of 2%-3% of the midpoint 

within the range for employees who have reached the maximum rate in 

the assigned pay grade. 



Memorandum to George D. Forbes 

June 4, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

Pension 

• Preserves the current Defined Benefit Plan and the 3% multiplier. 

• Provides for a maximum benefit of 90% of final average compensation or 

$90,000 annually, whichever is less. 

• Increases the vesting period from 5 years to 1 O years. 

• Eliminates the early retirement benefit. 

• Excludes overtime pay from pensionable compensation. 

• Replaces the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) with Back-DROP. 

• Eliminates the Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for employees hired 

after the effective date. 

• For current employees: Preserves the 2% COLA for benefits earned as of 

the effective date; provides for a 1 % COLA for benefits earned after the 

effective date. 

• Increases the employee contribution from 6.45% to 7.95%. 

• Provides for all accumulated premium tax revenues to be used to reduce 

the unfunded actuarial liability of the plan. 

All proposed changes to the existing language are highlighted in Attachment A. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Ratify the Collective Bargaining Agreement with the International Association of 

Firefighters, Local 2622, effective June 1, 2014. 



ARTICLE2 

RECOGNITION 

ATTACHMENT A 

2.1 The City hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for purposes 
of collective bargaining for its employees in the bargaining unit described in the 
Public Employees Relations Commission Certification Number 456 of April 17, 
1979. 

INCLUDED: All Privates, Firefighters, Firefighter/Engineers, and 
Lieutenants of the Jacksonville Beach Fire Department, 
including the Training Lieutenant and Fire Safety 
Specialist. 

EXCLUDED: Fire Chief, Captains, Fire Marshal, Administrative 
Secretary and all other employees of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach. 

1 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE3 

STRIKE PROHIBITION AND WORK REQUIREMENTS 

3.1 The Union and bargaining unit members shall have no right to engage in any work 
stoppage, slow down or strike, or to withhold services. Eaek empleyee wke kales e 
pesitieA with the UnieA eee1:1pies else e pesit:ieA ef speeiel trust ens respensieility in 
maiAtainiftg 8ftS eriflging 8Bel:lt eempliBHee with this Artiele 8ftS the sffi.ke pr-ekieitieA ef 
Seet:ieA 4 47.505, Fie. Statutes 8ftS the CeAstitl:ltieA ef the State ef fleritie, t\rtiele l, 
Seet:ieA 6. 

H The Unien; its effieers, egeets, steweras ens ether represeAtatives agree that it is their 
eeAtinuteg eeliget:iee 8ftS respeesieility te ffietetete eomplienee with this ft.ftiele 8ftS tfle 
law, iflelt:ldieg their respeesieility te eeise ey the pre•lisiees ef this Artiele 8RS the law ey 
ref8ai:ni.flg &t werk Slifi:eg eey i:eteffliptieA wkieh ffiBy ee ifl:itieteEl ey etflers; 8BS 
iflel1:1si:eg their respeesieility, in tfle eveAt ef BR&eh ef this Aftiele er the Jew ey ether 
empleyees, 8BS l:lf)08 the request ef the City, te eAeel:lfftge ens si1eet empleyees vieleting 
this Artiele er the law te rerum te werk, 8RS te sisevew the strike p1:1eliely. 

3.;i Any and all employees who violate any provision of the law prohibiting strikes or this 
Article may be disciplined, up to and including discharge, by the City:., BHS BHY s1:1ek 
eetieA e~· the City shell eet Be grieveele er ereitFeele l:lllSer the previsieAS ef Afiiele 28 
Griev8Ree PreeeEl1:11e, e>teept te setermiAe if vieletiees, i:e feet, eeel:lffeEl. 

3.4J, In justice and fairness to the City and taxpayers, all employees shall be required to report 
to work on time, shall not leave the job early, shall be prompt in reporting to their 
assigned duties, and shall faithfully perform their duties. The City and the Union agree 
that the basic intent of this Agreement is to provide conditions of employment suitable to 
maintain a competent work force. 

2 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 5 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

5.1 There shall be no discrimination against any worker, namely by reason of race, 
national origin, religion, color, creed, sex, age, disability or union membership or 
non-membership. The City and the Union affirm their joint opposition to any 
discriminatory practices in connection with employment, union membership, 
promotion or training; and agree that the public interest requires the full 
utilization of employee's skill and ability. Employees e8:ft eriAg sueA: ela:ims 
ilifough the grie'l'tHtee proeeel:H'e aAe St:afe tHte Feeeral legal sysfems. 

5.2 The Union agrees to support the City's Equal Employment Opportunity Plan 
provided it is within the scope of applicable laws. If the plan violates any contract 
provision or law, it may be appealed through the grievance procedure as outlined 
in Article 29. The City agrees to provide the Union with a copy of any Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan and Amendments adopted by the City. 

3 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 7 

UNION STEW ARDS AND REPRESENTATIVES 

7.1 To preserve the delivery of services and in accordance with Section 447.509. Fla. Statutes, the 
Union, their members, agents, or representative, or any persons acting on their behalf are 
prohibited from the following acts; soliciting public employees during working hours of any 
employee who is involved in the solicitation; distributing literature during working hours in 
areas where the actual work of public employees is performed, such as offices, fire stations, 
and any similar public installations. Distribution of literature may be allowed during 8ft 

empleyee' s looek ke\:tf er Eli:nfter ke\:tf iR the fire Deper.meet parkiBg let. The Uaiee ftuther 
agrees that there shall be ee sigeieg er ergani2Btieee:l aetivity, eelleetieR ef fees, El\::les er 
assessmeets, meetiRgs er ether bl::tSieess aetivity ef the UaieR eR City time er eR City preperty 
at ftft)' time exeept WlEler the eeeElitiees e\::ltlineEl ab<we. non-working time in non-working 
areas. such as the bunk rooms. kitchen, TV room and the Fire Department parking lot. There 
shall be no signing or organizational activity. collection of fees. dues or assessments, 
meetings or other union business activity (referred to herein as "union business") during 
working time. Such union business may, however. be conducted between employees. 
provided that it occurs during non-working time of each of the employees. As used herein. 
"non-working time" shall mean time that the employee is not actually performing. scheduled 
or assigned to perform duties related to the employee' s employment with the City. including 
during the employee' s lunch and dinner periods. and during time allowed for PT and personal 
time. so long as the employee has not been assigned a work related duty or assignment during 
this time. 

7.2 A complete list of Union Representatives shall be furnished to the City, and any changes shall be 
reported in advance in writing to the City prior to the Union Representatives conducting any 
Union business. 

RegttlatieRs pertainiRg te the eeeEl\::let ef City empleyees ef the City l:lftless speeifieally exempted 
by pre'l·isieRS ef the AgreemeRt. 

7.4J Contract ratification votes and election of officers may be conducted in the fire station subject to 
approval by the Fire Chief. 

4 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 9 

PENSION 

9.1 Retirement benefits and employee contributions for employees covered by this 
Agreement shall be as provided in the City of Jacksonville Beach Firefighters' 
Retirement Plan (the ·'Plan"), except as provided below. All changes to the 
existing Plan shall take effect July 21, 2014 or upon implementation of this 
Agreement.. if later (the ··effective date"). 

9.2 The benefit multiplier shall be 3.0% for all credited service on and after the 
effective date, up to the maximum benefit provided in section 9.3 below. 
Employees who are employed on the effective date shall retain their accrued 
benefits based on service prior to the effective date. 

9.3 The maximum benefit shall be 90% of final average compensation or $90.000 
annually. whichever is less; provided, any employee who has accrued a benefit 
percentage in excess of 90% or an annual benefit of more than $90.000 on the 
effective date shall retain that accrued benefit. but shall not accrue any additional 
benefit percentage or amount after the effective date. 

9.4 Compensation for pension purposes on and after the effective date shall be base 
pay plus longevity pay and incentive pay, and shall exclude overtime pay and all 
other compensation. 

9.5 The normal retirement date for employees with less than 10 years of credited 
service on the effective date and employees hired on or after that date shall be age 
52 with 25 years of credited service. age 55 with 10 years of credited service, or 
30 years of credited service regardless of age, whichever is earlier. Employees 
with 10 or more years of credited service on the effective date shall retain the 
current normal retirement date of age 52 with 25 years of credited service. age 55 
with 5 years of credited service, or 30 years of credited service regardless of age. 

9.6 The early retirement benefit shall be eliminated on the effective date; provided, 
employees who have attained age 50 with 10 or more years of credited service or 
20 years of credited regardless of age on the effective date shall retain the current 
early retirement benefit. 

9.7 The vesting period for employees with less than 5 years of credited service on the 
effective date and employees hired on or after that date shall be 10 years. 
including credited service before and after the effective date. The deferred benefit 
for employees with less than 10 years of credited service on the effective date and 
employees hired on or after that date who attain 10 years of credited service and 
separate from city employment prior to the normal or early retirement date shall 
be payable at age 52 with 25 years of credited service or age 55 with 10 years of 
credited service, or age 65 with 5 years of credited service, whichever is earliest. 

5 



ATTACHMENT A 

9.8 There shall be no cost of living adjustment for employees hired on or after the 
effective date. Employees who are employed on the effective date shall retain the 
current 2% cost of living adjustment for benefits based on credited service before 
the effective date. and shall have a 1 % annual cost of living adjustment applied to 
benefits based on credited service on and after the effective date. 

9.9 The above changes shall not apply to any employee who has reached age 52 with 
25 years of credited service. age 55 with 5 years of credited service. or 30 years of 
credited service regardless of age on the effective date. 

9.10 The DROP shall be closed to new members on the effective date, and replaced 
with a BACK-DROP. Employees who are participating in the DROP on the 
effective date may continue to participate in the DROP under the terms in effect 
on the date they entered the DROP. Employees who reach the normal retirement 
date on or after the effective date. and employees who have reached the normal 
retirement date before the effective date but are not participating in the DROP on 
that date. and continue employment beyond the normal retirement date may elect 
the BACK-DROP. Under the BACK-DROP. an employee may receive a lump 
sum payment equal to the pension benefits the employee would have received had 
he/she retired on their normal retirement date. with interest at the rate of 3%. The 
member' s benefit will then be actuarially adjusted to reflect the lump sum 
payment. 

9.11 Commencing on the effective date, the employee contribution shall be 7.95% of 
compensation. 

9.12 The parties agree that all accumulated additional premium tax revenues as 
reflected in the October 1. 2012 actuarial valuation shall be used to reduce the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Plan. 

6 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE IO 

[NO ARTICLE] 

ARTICLE 10 

BULLETIN BO.A .. W 

l 0.1 The UftioB may at its oWB eK~ese, provide a lmlletia board of staftclafti si~ to ee 
detetmi:eecl ey the Fife Chief for its ovffl eKel\:ISive \:!Se iB keepiBg with the deeor of the 
workiBg loeatioB at a loeatioB desigaated ey the Fife Chief. If it eeeoFAes Beeessary to 
reloeate the B\:tlletift eoarcl the UftioB and the City will FAeet to FAl:lt\:tftlly agt"ee OB the 
Bew loeatioB. 

l 0.2 The UftioB agrees that it shall only \:!Se spaee OB a el:l:lletin eoarcl deserieed aeO're for the 
follo'+v'&:f'l:g p1:1Fp0ses: 

l) Notiee of Uftioa meetiA:gs; 

2) UftioB Eleetions; 

3) Reports of Uftioa eommittees; 

4) Reereational aBd soeial affairs of the UBioB; 

5) MiB1:1tes of UftioB FAeetiftgs. 

l 0.3 All Uftioft FAaterials plaeed Oft the el:l:lletift boarcl sliall ee sigaed ey a UftioB offieer aBd 
eopies of aBy materials to ee posted shall ee forwarded to the Fire Chief Of his dl:l:ly 
a1:1tho~ AgeBt prior to the postiBg of BftY s1:1eh materials. 

10.4 All eosts iA:eideBt&l to prepamtioa 8:Ad postiBg of Uftioa material shall ee at the eKpense 
of the UftioB. The UftioB is respoBSiele for posting aBd reFAoviBg appro'+·ed material 
froFA the el:l:lletiB eoarcl and for FAaiBtaiftiBg s1:1eh e1:1lletiB boarcl iB orderly fashioB. 

7 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 12 

MEDICAL EXAMINATION 

12. l It is understood that the City retains the right to require employees to be in good 
physical condition so that they are able to perform the normal duties assigned 
them. 

12.2 Each employee will be required to have an annual physical examination 
administered by the City's physician. The pkysieel tme e·relHatieR will be 
easee eR the ste:AEiafEis estaeliskee by NFPA 1582, :MEDICAL 
REQUIRBMBNTS FOR FIREflGMTERS. 

The physical and evaluation will include: 

1. Annual Medical History Questionnaire. 
2. Interval Occupational History. including signification exposures. 
3. Vital Signs including: Height. Weight. B/P, Heart Rate, Heart Rhythm, 

Pulse. Respirations. Temperature. 
4. Drug Screen (5 panel) 
5. Blood Work 
6. Tuberculin Skin Test (ppd) 
7. Dermatological System 
8. Head. Neck, Ears. Eyes. Nose. Mouth, and Throat 
9. Cardiovascular System 
10. Respiratory/Pulmonary System 
11. Gastrointestinal System 
12. Genitourinary System 
13. Endocrine and Metabolic Systems 
14. Musculoskeletal System 
15. Neurological System 
16. Audiometry 
17. Visual Acuity Testing 
18. Spirometry-Pulmonary Function Test 
19. Cardio Stress Test (every three years) 

New Hires receive the above physical. Cardio Stress Test. chest x-ray. plus the 
Hepatitis B Immunization Series and tetanus booster. 

Employees that test positive on the TB Titer Test receive a Chest X-Ray. 

If a non-work related condition is discovered during this physical, the employee is 
referred to his/her personal physician. 

12.3 Examinations will be scheduled during the employee's on-duty time. 
Examinations will be at City expense. 

8 



ATTACHMENT A 

12.4 The City will require a drug test during the annual medical examination and may 
require a drug test any time an employee is referred to a physician for a fitness for 
duty examination. 

9 



A TI ACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 13 

MEDICAL, DENT AL, LIFE INSURANCE 

13. l The City egFees to eoatm\:le to f)fOVide em13loyees with heelth tA:S\:lf8Bee eeeefits 
eom138f8ble to the HRAOl\Pln 70/30 with ded\:letible f)len. 

13 .2 The City egFees to 13ey the f)Fem:i\:tffi eost foF eoveFege \:lftdeF the City Sf)OASOFed insttfftAee 
13len set forth below, de13ead-iag oa the em13loyee' s eleetioa of eoveFege \:lftdeF the City 
Sf)OftSOFed ffisl:lllmee f)leR: 

Siagle Em13loyee $426.57 

Emf)lO)'ee & Spo\:ISe $575.01 

E:m13loyee & ChildFea $581.55 

E:m13loyee & family $775.69 

These etBO\:l:Bts sftell ee 13eid by the City toweFd the eost of the City s13oasoFed health 
ifts\:lffl:Ree, end this Artiele does aot eatitle eny em13loyee to Bft)' eesh 13eymeet. The 
emf)loyee sftell 8e Fespoesible foF ell otheF 13remi\:lffiS end otheF ias\:lf8Jlee eosts. 
Emf)loyees who ekose aot to 13ertieif)ete ia the City Sf)OASOFed heelth iesttfftAee f)FOgfem 
skell aot be eetitled to eny 13eymeat \:lftdeF this Artiele. 

13.3 De13eadeet eoveFege foF medieel end deatel ies\:lfWlee will be eveileble oa 13e)'foll 
ded\:letioe et em13loyee's exf)eese. 

13 .4 The City egFees to eoatia\:le to f)Fovide em13loyees with deatel ifts\:lfflftee eom138f8ble to 
the e\:lffeet steedeFd DPPO Plen. The City egFees to f)ey e portioa of the f)Femi\:tffi eost of 
the City SpE>ftSOfed deatel ms\:lfftBee 13len \:If) to e fft8:KIBUlffi $9.32 f)ef moaffi. The 
emf)loyee sftell be Fespoesible foF ell otheF f)Fem:ilJffiS eed ell otheF deatel ies\:lf8Bee eosts. 
Emf)loyees wko ekose aot to 13ertieipete iH the City Sf)OBSOred deatel ins\:lfenee f)FOgfBffi 
shell eot be eetitled to eny pe)'ffteat \:lftdeF this Artiele. 

13.5 Tke City .. v:tll eoatm\:le to pmvide life ins\:lf8Bee to emf)loyees ia tke emo\:lftt of $25,000 et 
AO eost to the employee. 

13.6 The City .. v:tll f)FO'lide $600 BF&i\:lelly to ell em13loyees iR tke beFgeiaiag linit. This skell be 
eoesidered e eefetefie S\:lf)f)lemeat se13BFete from selery. 

13.7 If the City leems ffiet the totel heelth ies\:lfenee pFemi\:tffi eost to em13loyees \viii iaereese 
more then l 0%, the City shell aotify the Union; end, \:lpE>A Feq\:lest fi:om the Unioe, the 
City egFees to Feof)eB seetioa 13 .2 of this Artie le. 

10 



ATTACHMENT A 

13.1 The City agrees to continue to provide employees with the basic Medical, Dental 
and Life Insurance (excluding Supplemental Accident) group programs offered 
other City employees. 

13.2 The City agrees to pay the same amount of premium for the same insurance 
coverage on bargaining unit members as it does for other City employees. 

13.3 Dependent coverage for medical and dental insurance will be available on payroll 
deduction at employee's expense. 

13.4 If, during the term of this Agreement, the City agrees to improve the medical, 
dental and life insurance for any other City employees it will likewise improve the 
insurance for members covered by this Agreement. 

13.5 The City will provide $600 annually to all employees in the bargaining unit. This 
shall be considered a cafeteria supplement separate from salary. 

11 



AITACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 14 

UNIFORMS&EQUIPMENT 

14.1 All uniforms, protective clothing or protective devices issued to employees 
covered by this agreement in the performance of their duties shall be furnished by 
the Fire Department. Ownership of uniforms and protective clothing shall remain 
with the Fire Department. 

14.2 All employees must provide their own personal socks and undergarments. All 
employees must wear undergarments at all times. 

14.3 Employees shall not wear articles unless issued to them by department policy or 
authorized by the Fire Chief. All members shall be neat in appearance at all 
times. Employees shall be allowed to purchase and wear their own personal Fire 
Helmet as long as it meets NFP A requirements, is the same color and style as 
used by the City (including insignia shield/goggles, which will be provided by the 
City), and so long as the helmet has material (including insignia shield) affixed to 
it that matches the City's helmets. and nothing more. If an employee uses his/her 
own helmet pursuant to this section. the employee shall return to the department 
the City issued helmet. 

14.4 Employees may wear an l.A.F.F. lapel pin on Class A dress blue uniform shirts, 
Class B uniform shirts and hats in accordance with uniform rules established by 
the City. 

14.5 Employees whose clothing or shoes become damaged while on duty may have 
them repaired or replaced as determined by the City at City expense. 

14.6 A uniform maintenance allowance of $35.00 per month shall be issued to each 
employee for the purpose of maintaining such uniforms with proper cleaning, 
repairs, etc. 

12 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 19 

HOLIDAYS 

19 .1 The following days are hereby declared holidays for all bargaining unit members: 

1) The first day of January (New Year's Day) 

2) The third Monday of January (Martin Luther King Day) 

3) The last Monday of May (Memorial Day) 

4) The fourth day of July (Independence Day) 

5) The first Monday of September (Labor Day) 

6) The eleventh day of November (Veteran's Day) 

7) The fourth Thursday of November (Thanksgiving Day) 

8) The fourth Friday of November (The day after Thanksgiving Day) 

9) The twenty-fifth day of December (Christmas Day) 

10) Any other holiday proclaimed by Ordinance of the Council or 
proclamation of the Mayor. 

19.2 Employees on a 56 hour shift shall eam eempeesatery time receive holiday pay at 
straight time for a rate ef 6 ~hours per meftthholiday, net te exeeee 84 helif'S in 
his/her eempeesate~' leave eank. If the City proclaims an additional holiday as 
per paragraph 19 .1, Item 10, each employee on a 56 hour shift shall ee 
ereeitedreceive 8 hours eempeR:Satery holiday pay leave for each additional 
holiday declared. Creeits may ee expeneee in he\:H'ly iflerements t:tsing a 
mtntmliffl ef fe\:H' (Example: 4 he\:H'S, 5 he\:H's, 6 he\:H's, etc ... ) fer partial clay 
exct:tsee frem Elt:tt)'. Emergency leave may ee expeneee in he\:H'ly iflcrements ef 
ene he\:H' er mere. 

19 .3 Employees who work these holidays shall be paid time and one-half their regular 
rate of pay for hours worked on a holiday. in addition to 8 hours of holiday pay. 

19.4 A) For employees in the bargaining unit whose regular schedule is a 40 hour 
per week schedule, when a holiday falls on a Saturday, the Friday before 
shall be observed, or if Sunday, the following Monday. 

(B) Forty hour per week employees shall receive the holiday off, with pay, or, 
in the alternative, shall be paid time and one-half their regular rate of pay 
for hours worked on a holiday. 

13 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 23 

HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 

23.1 Hours of Work. The average work cycle for bargaining unit members shall be as 
follows: 

Combat Personnel. Fifty-six (56) hours per week. 

The present schedule of twenty-four (24) hours on duty, 24 hours off duty, 24 
hours on duty, 24 hours off duty, 24 hours on duty, followed by ninety-six (96) 
hours off duty will remain unchanged for all employees defined as fifty- six (56) 
hour shift employees. 

23.2 Recall. When an employee is recalled from off duty or reports to the fire station 
for an overtime assignment and the overtime has been canceled without 
notification to the employee, he/she shall be paid for two (2) hours at time and 
one- half their normal rate for reporting to work as assigned. The employee will 
not be required to stay for the two hour overtime. Upon mutual agreement 
between an employee and the City, the employee may receive compensatory time 
in lieu of overtime payment. This does not increase the amount of compensatory 
time any employee may accumulate. Employees transferring from a 56 to 40 hour 
shift or 40 hour to 56 hour shift shall have his/her balance of compensatory time 
hours converted to the appropriate equivalent as determined by the City. 

When a critical need arises as determined by the Fire Chief, or his designee, an 
employee may be recalled off vacation. In such an event, he/she will be paid time 
and one-half for all hours worked and receive credited vacation to be granted at a 
later date. Employees who are recalled to work on a paid holiday, shall receive the 
same benefits as regularly scheduled employees. 

23.3 Changing Shifts. When shift changes are made on the scene rather than at the 
station, the off going shift shall be considered properly relieved on the immediate 
return to the Fire Station, unless required to work overtime by his/her shift 
supervisor. 

23.4 In compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended ("FLSA"), 
the City of Jacksonville Beach ("the City") and the International Association of 
Firefighters, Local 2622 ("The Firefighters"), agree that any overtime due 
employees in accordance with the FLSA shall be computed as follows: 

(A) Employees on a fifty-six (56) hour schedule shall receive extra 
compensation at the rate of one-half (1 /2) their regular rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of (204) during the 27 day work period. For purposes of this 
section, the term "hours worked" shall include, in addition to regular duty, paid 
military leave, comp and vacation leave. Absences from work without pay and 

14 



ATTACHMENT A 

sick leave shall not count as hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime. 
The procedure for compensating employees who exchange or swap shifts on a 
temporary basis, pursuant to Article 20, shall continue. 

(B) Employees in the bargaining unit whose regular schedule is 40 hours per 
week shall be paid overtime, at the rate of one and one-half times the regular rate 
of pay, for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the 7 day workweek. 

(C) 0¥ertime shall be assigaed in aeetmiaA:ee with the follewiBg preeetit:lfes: 

( l) 2'\B e•;ertiffie list shall ee kept ey the Capta:iHS and shall ee matttta:iBed ta 
the Capta:iHS' effiee ta StatieB l . All empleyees may ha¥e aeeess te the 
list t:ipeR reBSE)ftaele reEtt:iest. The shift eemmander, er the shift 
eemmBA:der' s desigaated effieer, shall ee respeMihle fer assigamg 
evertime. The evertime list ·Nill eeRSist ef perseRA:el frem eaeh shift, 
8ff8ftged e~· senierity eR eaeh shift. Eaeh year, by Re later thaB F'eefl:J8f)' 
l , the e¥ertime list will ee HpSated with ReW perseRRel Stattis, SHeh as 
P8f81B:edie, ERgiBeer, ete., all past e¥ertime aeti¥it}' vAll he delete&, BA:d 
the list will be staffed anew as if Re e·;ertime ha<:i eeeR pre¥ieHSly efferee 
er aeeepted. 

(2) The shift eoffiffi8ftder, or the shift eommBA:der' s desigaated effieer, will 
eall for sehedt:iled o¥ertime for the ReKt set of shifts eR the e¥eniBg prier te 
the Shift Cemmander' s shift getag OR its 4 eays off. WheR possible, 
ealleaeks for seheet:i}ee O¥ertiffie will take plaee eet\veeB e pm 8:B:Q 7 pm. 
Otherwise, the ealleaeks will be maee as SOOR as possible. The shift 
eoftlffi8ftder, er the shift eeffilll8flder's desigaated offieer '+'fill eegifl with 
the employee who is fl:l:rthest eehifte OR the list frem the two other shifts 
that are Rot the Shift Commander's OWR. 

(3) All sehedHled e·;ertime ealleaeks will fellow the el:tffeBt e¥ertime list. 
Calleaeks will be made fer the positioR ·;aeBA:ey \:lftless Re oRe is available. 
DepeRding eR the shift Heeded fer the o·;ertime, persoRA:el may ee skippe<:i 
if the ¥aeBA:ey oee\:tfs OR their shift. If a persoR is seleeted for e·;ertime et:it 
of the Rermal rotatioft, the Shift CemmBA:der er his desigaated effieer \¥ill 
ge eaek to the last 8:8ftle 08: the list fer the ReKt seleetieR preeess for 
0¥ertime. A deeisieft mHst ee maee at the time of the eall whether or ROt 
the member is a¥ailaele to work OR the desigaatee ooy. 

(4) Calleaek will be reEtt:iested f8ftk for f8ftk HA:less perseooel are Hft8¥ailaele. 
A F'irefighterlERgifleer ean be HSed te fill as either 8ft aetiBg Liet:iteft8ftt er 
fuefighter, if the pesitieft e8fl:H:Ot be filled from that ra:nk's list. A 
Lieute88ftt ean be HSe<:i to fill as an aettag Capta:iR if the positieB eanA:et be 
fillee from that FBBk' s list. If Be ofte is a¥ailaele, rBaneatery e¥ertime will 
be Reeessary. 

(5) 0Ree a member Bas aeeepted the 0¥ertlme, hisfher Rftftl:e \¥ill ee logged 
with the &ate refit:iested eR the evertime list. The ae><t ealleaek ·Nill begiR 

15 



AITACHMENT A 

with the fteKt H:ame eft the list pFevided he/she is H:et sehedHled feF dHty. 
Vae8fleies (peFSOllftel behiftd) 08 the list sheHld be filled prieF te 
eeH:tiH:Hieg v;ith the eeFm&l rntatieft, heweveF eH:ly efte ea:lb'eppemmity 
will be maee f'0F f'0FS0ft J'.'0r day. Persellftel will ft0t be a:llev.red te take twe 
eeeseeHtive ea:lls peF day. E:Kample: LieHteH:ant #1 is twe ea:lls behied the 
Fest ef the LieHteeftftts. Lt. #I is ea:lled first, ftftd deeliees (plaee a NA). Lt. 
#2 is eee ea:ll behied the fteRHa:l retatiee 8fld is ea:lled eeKt (he a:lse 
deelffies aed is givee BB }'JA). Start eew ie the ftefffl:a:l retatiee fer the 
ether LieHteftBllts. NeitheF LieHteftliftt will be givee 8fletheF eppeffitftity 
dwiH:g this day. 

(e) A ftetatieft will be made eft the list fer eaeh peFsee ea:lled te iedieate 
whether they 'Nere H:et a\·ailable er that they aeeepted evertime. If a peFSOe 
is eet available d'l:lf'iftg the eall J'.'0R0d; it vi'ill be eeH:Sidered the same as 
ntrfti.ftg deWB the evertime 8fld marked NIA. The reqHest te fill BA 

evertime slat \vill eeH:tieHe deWH: the list \:tfttil the vae8fley is filled. feF 
these eife\:lffistanees where ee efte is eefttaeted, the Shift SHpeFYiseF vt'ill 
make a deeisieR eft filliflg the pesitiee HsiRg ether J'.'0rsellftel. These 
members whe were 'l:lft8ble te werk eF H:et reaehed will have BB "NIA" 
plaeed by theiF H:ame Bftd will eet be available te weFk ea:llbaek 0\'ertime 
\:tfttil the retatieft eemes are\:tftd te their ft8ffie eft the list agaiR. 

(7) Offieers ·.vill ft0t take eames 8fldf.er dates whee peeple will be available 
fer evertime ift aev8flee. If lift empleyee dees Ret ·.vi sh te be e<>Rsidered feF 
ea:llbaek everrime, he/she e8ft reqHest iB writiftg (te their Shift SHpen'iser) 
te be takeft eff the list feF sehedHled evertime. A H:etatieft will be maee eR 
the list, hewever they will still be reqHired te werk mandatery evertime. If 
a J'.'0FS0R deeides te be plaeed baek 08 the sehedHled 0'rertime list; they 
.. vill de se iR writiag te their Shift SHf'0FViser ftftd will be eeesideFed te 
ha\'e beeR t:mavailable fer evertime d'l:lri:Bg the J'.'0R0d iliat they asked te be 
remeved frem the list. 

(8) SHf'01"''isers makiRg evertime ea:lls will eftly effer eRe eee\:lffeRee (fu.ll 
shift er partial shift) ef evertime peF ea:ll. The iRdivid\:la:l may have several 
eheiees ef wheR te werk, hewever he/she may en!y aeeept eRe shift J'.'0F 
ealh 

(9) If an ffidivid\:la:l aeeepts eallbaek evertime, that ifldivid\:la:l is respeH:Sible 
fer weFkiBg the desigeatea time J'.'0Red \:Hlless the iedivid\:la:l is 'l:lft8ble te 
werk evertime that he/she has aeeepted dHe te illftess er ether \:IB\:15\:la:l 
eire\:lffistBBees. If this eee'l:lfs, the i:Bdivid\:la:l mHst ifB:FRediately eeRtaet the 
Shift CemmliftdeF (a mirum\:lffi ef 0fte he\:lf befeFe shift ehBA:ge time) BA:d 
let him/her kBew ef the siftlatieR ftftd theiF iRability te werlc The emple)'ee 
whe agreed te iRitia:lly weFk will Iese hislheF slat ee the evertime list. 
lRdivid\:la:ls will eRly be eempensatea feF the 0\'ertime he\:lfS 'N0Fked; BA:d 
at the appropriate Fate. 

16 



ATTACHMENT A 

( l 0) The TfB:i.ning Liel:lteRa:At will be allowed to work sehed\tied 011ertiflle OR 
weekeRcls ift Combat; pro11ided the Fire Marshal or other perseRHel are 
a11ailaele to fill as the Safety Offieer. The eoFFRal rotatioR sehed\tie vfill be 
followed, howeYer for weekdays a l'JA ·Nill ee used for the TraiRiRg 
Liel:lteRant. 

( 11) 011ertime for personRel workiRg OR Speeial Projeets, Pre fire Plans, High 
Haz:ard InspeetioRs, PlBfls ReYiew, or assisting the Fire Marshal vrill Rot 
ee eharged iR the ROFFRal O'lertiflle list. 

( 12) Paramedies will be gi11eR first priority for any shift wheR Ro paramedie is 
OR dl:lty to fill 8ft o,.·ertime slot to keep the StatioR 2 ALS eRgiRe iR 
serviee, however with-ifl the followiftg gt:1ideliftes: 

a) Paramedies ean work positieR for positioR. The e,.•ertime for 
pElllHBedies is vohifitary. lR most eases eheek vfith the off geiRg shift 
for a pB:f8:FRedie. 

e) For ROFFRal pBflH'ftedie 'laeaneies, Liel:lteRa:Ats er Captains will Rot be 
allowed to work de'Nfl as an E:egifleer er Liel:lteRa:At to fill a 
pBflH'ftedie vaeaney. (Fer emergeRey eall eaeks the City will fill as 
eeeded to fill pesitieRs OR the reserve l:lftits). 

e) An E:egineerlparamedie may ee alle·Ned to work l:lp as aleRg as there 
is a vaeBftey, if they ha11e met the aetiRg offieer reql:liremeRts and it 
does Rot eal:lse a Liel:lteRBRt to work dewft, BRd it does Rot go against 
other departmeRt sffiffiR~aetiRg reql:liremeRts (miniml:lffl Rl:lffleer of 
offieers OR dl:lty). 

d) If the shift Ceffi:ffi8ftder er another Liel:lteRa:At is off, staffiRg may ee 
me•1ed arel:lRd to allow eRe of the Liel:lteRant/param:edies er a 
E:egi:eeer/param:edie to work at the statioR, while me11i:eg that 
effieer to the headql:laffers sffitioR. Yol:l ean move persenRel as 
eeeded to mainffiifl ALS sffiftis withi:e these gt!ideliRes. 

e) If a Liel:lteRant/param:edie is werkffig ol:lt of elass as a Shift 
CommBRder, another param:edie sho\tid ee l:ltilized to fill the epeeiflg 
if possible follew1ftg these gt:lideliRes. 

f) The day '¥ill ee reeorded as any ether time worked folle\¥iRg RoFFRal 
polieies. 

g) Paramedies \¥ill Rot ee gi'leR priority to sffiff the ALS UR.it iR SffitieR . 

h) Pamm:edies may be gi11eR priority to man the ME:RV UR:it or bike 
tefH'fts for speeial eveRts, eased l:lpoR the employees who 110ll:lRteer for 
the eveRt. 

17 



AITACHMENT A 

( 13) Misl:!Se ef the i:nteRt ef this evertime peliey te be a fair and eql:Htable 
system will result ffi <iiseipliftary aetieR. 

CALLBACK OVERTIME (NONSCHEDULED) 

( 14) Whee a ¥8Cftfte)' eeel:tf'S in the memi:Ag pfier te the 8 am shift eMehe:ege, the 
e11ettime will be effered te eff geiftg peFSOBBel ef the same rank. If twe 
peFS<>nAel ef the sam:e rank are B"lailable at a statieA; the s\:lpervisor will 
fifst effer the 0\1ertime to the iR<ii11idl:18:1 at that st:alieB that is eeJEt eB the 
eal:lbeek list. Pet'SOBBel, who weFe OR d\:lt)' b\:lt deelifted te work; will Bet 
be eharged for 8A O\'ertime eall. If AO oBe oe d\:lty agrees te work the 
eoe seeed\:lled 0·1ertim:e, a page will be seet o\:lt te the eff d\:lty shift 
aYailable to work; advising the o\·ertime eeedeEl, station, and the J>OSitioe 
req~ Pet'SOenel paged will have a fft8Kim\:llfl of30 mie:\:ltes te eal:l iD and 
eoR:fimt their ability te work the eoesehed1:1led O'f'ertime, before 
mandatory o'lertime is reql:l-ired of the ee d\:lty member. The flfSt 
ft'f'ailable eall in will reeei·f'e the eeesehedtJled O\'ertime. If an ift<ii·1idl:18:1 
agrees te work W1Sehed\:lled 011ertime, the date and time Yt'ill be eoted ee 
the eal:lbaek list as time worked: 

( 15) If a \r.eeafte)' eeel:tf'S after shift ehange d\:le te ooforeseeR emergeeeies and AO 

oee is a'lailable te till the YBeftftey, the st.tpePlisor .,yjy seed O\:lt a page, 
ad11isffig ef the Reeded J>05itiOB or J>05itioRS, with a Feq\:lest te eall the 
Captaie's offiee or Dispelek if 8\1ailable. If a page is eot s\:leeessftil in 
reeftl:iting peFSOftflel, the S\:lpervisor ·.'liH \:ISe the eall list te try and tiftd 
persoBnel to till the \'aeaeey. Staff personAel eftft be \:ISed oe a temJ>Orery 
basis te staffapf)8fllt\:IS. If eeeessary, maedatory O\'ertime will be reql:l-ired 
of BA)' personAel eoetaeted. 

( 16) Dwieg ae emergeRey .,,.,here persormel are Reeded to staff apparattiS, 
the Shift COIBIB8ftder will eoetaet Disfl8lek or t:ltilize the pagiRg systaB: at the 
stabOB te req\:leSt persowl te staff FeSef\'e ~· Steft<4by persowl ·.Yill 
be t:ltilized wkeae11et= it is projeeted that erews v.~ll be eomm:itted for tv10 
kol:tf'S or leRger. Off shift eallbael6'-reeeH for emergeBeies ·llill Bot be 
ekarged as time iD the eormal o\•ertime list. 

( 17) The Fire Marshal, aedfor Training Lie\:lteftftllt will moaiter their pagers 
after Boffftftl working hoW'S and TeSJ>Oftd whee a·1ailaBle for fires, speeial 
resettes, and other large seale ifteideets. 

( 18) For speeial e\•eftts, a sige \:If> skeet \'l'ill be pre11ided aHowiHg peFSeflftel the 
optioe of werkieg a speeial eveftt. 

MANDATORY OVERTIME/CALLBACK 

18 



ATTACHMENT A 

req~g pefSOAAel to report to the headqM81teFS slatioa, the Sottlh 
Beach Fire Statioa, or a speei.fied loeatioR for dttty. 

( 19) A mftfldato~· reeall for dttty is reqttired b~· all persoAAel to staff eqt:tipmeRt 
dtte to a poteRtial htJJTieaBe or other disaster. A departmeRt eallbaek •ll'iJ..I be 
isstted ttSing the paging s~'stem, bltt may reqttire the ttSe of the telephoRe 
~·stem. All pe-rsoRHel shottld report for dttty and staff reserve apJ*lfftftlS as 
qt:tiekly as possible. 

(20) ~4aftdato~· overtime "+'l:ill be reqt:tired at shift time wheR the Shill 
SttperVisor or his desigRBted offieer determines that RO off going 
persoRRel are a'+·ailable or agree to fill a '+'ae8fley. The Shift Sttpen·isor 
will determme, b85ed OR the O'+'ertime listfdot system, who is the ReKt 
persoR reqt:tired to work mBRdato~· 0•1ertime. 

a) A l'lt8fldalery e·;effime list will be kept in the "Overtime Book" 
reeording the dates of wheR BR employee worked maedato~· 
O'+'ertime. A dot/mark system will also be ltSed Bfld ttf)dated as 
Reeded OR the SlatliS board. Tffis Will ideRtify the ifldi·;idlttll WRO 
will be reqttired to work if maftdato~· overtime is Reeessary. The 
member iR eaeh rafik (LiettteRftflt, Fire ERgiReer, or Firefighter), 
who has Rot worked mBRdato~' overtime for the loRgest penod of 
time, 'Nill be the Rext member reqttired to work the mftfldato~· 
O'+'ertime slot. If a member is off dttty wheR he/she is required to 
'Nork mandate~' O'+'ertime, t:Be responsibility mo•1es to the ReKI: 
member w:ith the earliest date OR the list. The responsibili~· ;¥ill stay 
with the member 'NAO has oot wofked in the loRgeSt penod of time 
(earliest date OR the list). 

b) The ifldividl:Hl} ehoseR to work ffiftftdatO~' O't'ertime is responsible for 
worki:ftg the time fi:ame or shift, however he/she will be allowed to 
fiRd a sttbstitttte who is willing to work their tiffte if the~· ehoose. 

e) A page may be seRt ottt reqttesting persons interested in working 
overtime to eall the Shift SttpePlisor. If an individlttll who ealls in ftfld 
is available to work and is the same rafik or appro'+·ed b~' the Sfti:ft 
ColB::ffiftflder, he/she wti-1 be allo;-..red to sttbstitttte for the mandatory 
overtime. 

d) Mftfldato~· overtime or Sttbstitltte holtfS worked will Bot affeet the 
iedividl:lal's statliS OR the O't'ertime list. 

e) If a persoR has a pre approved lea't'e or 'f'aeatioR sehedttled; they w:ill 
Rot be reqt:tired to work maRdato~' o•«ertime dltr.ng that pmod. If 
mandatory work is reqttired; it w:ill fall to the ReKI: ifldi•;idlf81 08 the 
list 

19 



ATTACHMENT A 

(21) MeBc4etet)· eelleaek may ee FeEfliireti EitBiftg large seale eveets with ft large 
Rtlffl:ber efpeeple. 

(22) If ft J>efSOR is Ret able er fit te repert te Ell:lt)• El\:le te speeial eireliffl:Stftnee, 
he/she will &Elvise the Shill CefRffiftftEler/effieer eft:Be FeaS0B: 

20 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 25 

ON THE JOB INJURY 

25.1 Any regular employee covered by this Agreement who sustains a temporary or 
permanent disability as a result of accidental injury in the course of an arising out 
of employment by the City shall receive all benefits required by the Workers 
Compensation Laws of the State of Florida. Regular employees who are absent 
on account of injury, for which Workers Compensation is authorized, shall, upon 
written request to the City Manager, be allowed to take On-the-Job-Injury Leave 
in an amount requested in addition to Workers Compensation; except, however 
that in no case shall the total amount paid for both Workers Compensation and 
on Leave exceed the amount of wages to which the employee would ordinarily 
have been entitled had he/she not been injured. (The amount of on Leave when 
combined with the Workers Compensation amount shall equate to the employee's 
normal net after all deductions have been taken.) Any amount paid to the 
employee by the City for OJI Leave which is subsequently paid through Workers 
Compensation and results in payment exceeding the employees normal salary as 
outlined above shall be reimbursed by the employee to the City. 

25.2 On-the-Job-Injury Leave granted shall be in addition to normal accrued sick or 
vacation leave. Any employee so injured must report the accident to his/her 
supervisor before the end of the shift during which the accident occurred or not 
later than 72 hours thereafter to the on duty supervisor. 

25.3 Employees receiving On-the-Job-Injury Leave shall not work at any secondary 
jobs or at any outside employment. unless such employment has been authorized 
by the City' s Werkers' Cemp Aclmi:nistraterin its sole discretion. Failure to 
observe this rule shall result in forfeiture of any On-the-Job-Injury Leave. 

21 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE 34 

SALARIES 

34.1 All employees shall be compensated in accordance with the pay schedule attached 
hereto and made a part thereof, referred to as Schedule A. 

34.2 Eaeh empleyee shall f1F0gFess ifl the pay pl8ft as fellews: 

l) \Vftea B:R empleyee is premeted te a higher rank, the empleyee shall reeei¥e a 
14 .5% pay taerease B:Rd, if this taerease plaees the empleyee 9etweea steps ift the aew 
pay seale, the empleyee sfta:ll 9e plaeeEI ta the ae:Kt higher step. l:R ae e·teat shall B:R 
empleyee whe is premeted 9e plaeeEI ia a step ia the pay pla:R that is mere th8ft eae step 
eelew the step the empleyee was ta befere the f1F0metieR. \\Thea a Firefighter/Eagineer 
satisfaeterily eempletes the iaitial prebatieaary perieEI ift the pesitiea, the empleyee shall 
aG¥8ftee eae step in the flBY pier., whieh shall 9e ia additiea te BftY BflRtta:I perfeffftBflee 
step iftereases fer whieh the empleyee may ee eligible. 

2) ABy Liel:lteRBftt assigaeEI te the Trainiag Liel:lteRB:Rt pesitiea shall ad¥B:Ree eae 
step fer the peried ef time the empleyee serves as the Traiaiag Liel:ltea8ftt. This ifterease 
sfta:ll enly 9e ift effeet while the empleyee is serviag as Traiaiag Liel:lteA&llt; anEI at sl:leh 
time as the empleyee assl:lmes a f>OSitiea ether than the TraiRiag Liel:lteflB:Bt pesitieR; the 
empleyee shall rei.•ert eae step in the pa,· plBR. If the empleyee is at the tep ef the pay 
plBR at the time the empleyee asstiffies the Traifti.ag Liel:lteRBftt pesitiea, the empleyee 
sfta:ll be paiEI 8ft additieaa:I 3% per hel:lf fer the time the empleyee serves as Traiftiag 
Liel:lteRBftt. 

3) Other than as set ferth ah<we, there sfta:ll ee ae aeress the bearEI iaerease er merit 
salary ad¥aaeemeat te the empleyees' wages effeetive Nevember 15, 2012. 

:6ffeeti¥e Ne¥em9er 15, 2012, 8ft empleyee ma)' ee eligible fer 8ft :6XC.6L (:6xeelleat 
City :6mpleyees with Leagevity) a·:rarEI. This awarEI is eased l:lfleR satisfaetery serviee as 
Eletermiaed by the 8:Bfttta:I perfeRB8ftee appraisal. Empleyees whe Ele aet reeei¥e 
satisfaetery perfermaaee evall:latiens are aet eligible fer 8ft EXCEL awarEI. :6XCEL 
awards may 9e $500 fer a ·'Meets 8tandarEls" e¥all:latiea 8ftEI $1000 fer B:R "E:xeeeds 
Standards" e•tall:latiea. The amel:lRt ef the EXCEL award ·Nill ee flF0¥ideEI ift eae ltiffifl 
Sl:lIB BftG is Bet adEled te the empleyee's ease pay. Aflf1F0f1riate tax exell:lSieas will 9e 
made frem the aee¥e amel:lBt. EXCEL awards may ee B'f'larEleEI eaee e¥ery year. 

34.2 Appointments and Starting Rates. 

1) The minimum salary established for a position is considered the normal 
appointment rate for new employees. 

2) Appointments above the minimum salary may be authorized by the City 
Manager if the applicant's training. experience or other qualifications are 
substantially above those required for the position. 

22 



ATTACHMENT A 

34.3 Administration of the Pay Plan. 

1) The Pay Grade Schedule provides pay grades and salary ranges in hourly 
and annual amounts. Minimums, maximums and midpoints are identified. 

2) An employee may receive a salary increase by means of a merit salary 
advancement, promotion or reclassification, provided there is an 
availability of funds. 

3) The rate of pay of an employee within the pay grade will depend on merit. 
There are no provisions in the pay plan for automatic salary advancement 
as all merit increases are to be based upon work performance and other 
pertinent factors as evaluated by the employee's supervisor. 

4) The City Manager may approve special salary increases based on 
evaluation of performance. 

34.4 Merit Increases 

1) A merit salary advancement is a salary increase within the same pay grade 
and is not considered to be automatic but based upon an evaluation of 
performance of an individual. 

2) An employee is eligible for a merit salary advancement on the anniversary 
date of his/her employment in the position. as warranted by performance. 

3) Rules guiding the performance evaluation system determine whether there 
will be no increase or the increase will be 2% to 3% of the midpoint 
within the employee' s current pay grade. Recommendations for no 
increase or salary decrease must be justified. 

4) Merit increases in excess of 2% of the midpoint within the applicable pay 
grade may be justified for employees deserving special recognition and 
must be approved by the City Manager. 

34.5 Promotional and Probationary Increases 

When an employee is promoted to a higher rank. the employee shall receive a 14.5% pay 
increase. When a Firefighter/Engineer satisfactorily completes the initial probationary 
period in the position. the employee shall be eligible for a merit salary increase of 3% to 
5% over the employee' s current rate of pay. which shall be in addition to any annual 
merit increases for which the employee may be eligible. 

34.6 Special Assignment 

23 



134.9 

ATIACHMENT A 

Any Lieutenant assigned to the Training Lieutenant position shall receive a 5% salary 
increase for the period of time the employee serves as the Training Lieutenant. This 
increase shall only be in effect while the employee is serving as Training Lieutenant. and 
at such time as the employee assumes a position other than the Training Lieutenant 
position. the employee' s salary shall be decreased by 5%. 

34.7 EXCEL (excellent City Employees with Longevity) Program 

1) An employee may be eligible for a lump sum award of 2% to 3% of the midpoint 
within the employee' s current pay grade. based upon the performance evaluation. 
once the individual has achieved progression to the maximum pay in the assigned 
pay grade. EXCEL awards will be provided in one lump sum and will not be 
added to the employee's base pay. Appropriate tax exclusions will be made. 

2) EXCEL lump sums may be awarded once every year. An EXCEL award shall 
not be given during the same year as a merit increase. Exception is granted if the 
individual is recommended for an increase and in order to award the increase it is 
necessary to combine the merit increase with a lump sum EXCEL amount so that 
the employee's pay rate does not exceed the maximum rate for the pay grade. 

34.8 Effective Date 

The Position Classification and Pay Plan shall be effective on June I. 2014 and shall 
remain in force and effect until May 31 . 2016. at which time it will expire. 

All bargaining unit employees who have not reached the maximum salary for their pay 
grade shall receive a 1.0% increase over their current rate of pay on the effective date of 
this agreement. Employees who have reached the maximum salary for the assigned pay 
grade shall receive a lump sum payment in the gross amount of 1.0% of their annual 
salary. This shall be a one-time across the board increase and no further increases shall be 
automatic. 

24 



ARTICLE 35 

DRUG POLICY 

I. DEFINITIONS 

ATTACHMENT A 

1. "Alcohol" means ethyl alcohol (ethanol). References to use of alcohol include use of a 
beverage, mixture or preparation containing ethyl alcohol. 

2. "Illegal Drugs" means any controlled substance as defined in Section 893.03, Florida 
Statutes, as amended from time to time, not possessed or taken in accordance with a 
lawful prescription. 

3. "Reasonable suspicion" means a susp1c10n based upon specific objective facts and 
articulable circumstances that are able to be drawn from these facts in light of the 
observers experience. 

4. "Drug Abuse" means the ingestion of any controlled substance as defined in Section 
893.03, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, not pursuant to a lawful 
prescription. The term drug abuse also includes the commission of any act prohibited 
by Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. 

5. "Drug Test" includes an immunoassay screen; all positive initial results will be 
confirmed by retesting the same urine sample by a second analytical procedure 
(currently gas chromatography/mass spectrometry (GCMS). 

6. "Employee" means a person who performs services for compensation and is covered by 
the Worker's Compensation Act. 

7. "Employee Assistance Program" means an established program for employee 
assessment, counseling, and referral to an alcohol and drug rehabilitation program. 

8. "Medical Review Officer (MRO)". Refers to licensed physician responsible for 
receiving laboratory results generated by the City's drug testing program who has 
knowledge of substance abuse disorders and has appropriate medical training to 
interpret and evaluate an individual's confirmed positive test result together with his or 
her medical history and any other relevant biomedical information. 

9. "Under the Influence" means, for alcohol, .05 blood alcohol level and for drugs, the 
cutoff levels set by the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA). Traces of alcohol 
between .01-.04 which do not fall under this definition shall still be considered cause 
for disciplinary action. 

25 



A TI ACHMENT A 

D. INTRODUCTION 

Alcohol and drug abuse have become one of the nation's greatest problems. 
Unfortunately, we are not immune to such problems in the workplace. The City will not accept 
any risk that the safety of our employees, the safety of the general public, the quality of our 
services or work productivity may be impaired by the abuse of alcohol or use of illegal drugs. 

This policy is implemented pursuant to Executive Order 12584 (Drug Free Workplace 
Act), the drug free workplace program requirements set forth in §440. l 02 of the Florida 
Workers' Compensation Act, the Florida Administrative Rules 59A-24, Drug Free Workplace 
Standards (440.102), 49 C.F.R. Part 391 - Department of Transportation Controlled Substance 
Testing, 49 C.F.R. Part 40-Department of Transportation Procedures for Workplace Drug 
Testing Program and §316.302 Florida Statutes, traffic and safety for commercial motor 
vehicles. 

III. POLICY 

It is the policy of the City to maintain a drug-free workplace. As a condition of continued 
employment, all employees must refrain from using illegal or unprescribed drugs on or off the 
job and abide by the terms of this policy. It is a condition of employment that employees do not 
report to work with the presence of drugs or alcohol in their bodies. The use, sale, manufacture, 
distribution, purchase, possession, dispensing, or being under the influence of illegal drugs or 
non-prescribed controlled substances on or off the job is strictly prohibited. 

The use, sale, distribution, possession or being under the influence of alcohol on City 
property, while on City business or while operating a City owned or leased vehicle (or any 
vehicle being used for City business) is strictly prohibited. The use of alcoholic beverages by 
City employees on City premises or on City assignment may take place only when part of an 
approved city function. The authorization of alcoholic beverages at such functions does not 
relieve employees from the responsibility of exercising moderation and judgment so as not to 
represent a danger to themselves, other employees, the general public, or the City's reputation. 

In order to detect the use of these substances, as described above, employees may be 
directed to submit to urinalysis drug tests, blood tests, breath or saliva tests. Any applicant who 
refuses to submit to the pre-employment drug tests or who tests positive for drugs or alcohol 
shall be ineligible for hire and any offer of hire is conditioned upon satisfactory drug test results. 
Employees .. where reasonable suspicion has been found or employee has been ticketed, who 
refuse to be tested, who test positive for drugs or alcohol or who upon confrontation admit 
inappropriate or illegal usage of drugs or alcohol will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination of employment, and any illegal drugs found on City property will be 
turned over to appropriate law enforcement authorities. An employee injured on the job who 
refuses a drug test or whose test is confirmed positive will forfeit all workers' compensation 
medical and indemnity benefits in addition to any disciplinary action. 

Employees with substance abuse problems are urged to discuss a rehabilitation option 
with their Employee Assistance Provider. Employees who voluntarily come forward and admit 
(without being directed to submit to testing and absent any misconduct or injury or property 
damage) to being a user of illegal drugs shall be offered the opportunity for counseling or 

26 



ATTACHMENT A 

rehabilitation. Employees who wish to contact the City Employee Assistance Program directly 
are encouraged to do so. This is a confidential service that can be utilized without City 
involvement. Information regarding this assistance program is attached and if you have any 
questions please contact the Human Resources Department or your supervisor. 

IV. RULES 

A) Prohibition 

1) Use or possession of any illegal drug is prohibited. 

2) Possession of alcohol while on City premises or on duty is prohibited. 

3) Being under the influence of any illegal drug or alcohol while on duty is 
prohibited. 

4) Sale, manufacture, distribution, or dispensation of any illegal drugs is 
prohibited. 

EXCEPTION: Use or possession of a controlled drug that is prescribed to an employee is 
pennitted as prescribed for and used by that employee only. Employees are required to notify 
their supervisor if they are taking any medication that may impair their normal faculties causing 
drowsiness, blurred vision, etc. before they report to duty. 

B) Circumstances Warranting Testing 

1) "Job applicants" will be required to undergo testing as part of their employment 
physical before they can start work. Refusal to submit to a drug test or a positive 
confirmed drug test will exclude an individual from employment consideration or, 
if a conditional offer of hire has been made, the offer will be canceled. 

2) If the City has "Reasonable suspicion" that an employee has consumed or is under 
the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs the employee will be asked to undergo a 
urinalysis and/or blood test as directed. Reasonableness will be established when 
two managerial/supervisory employees concur that there is a reasonable suspicion 
that an employee is using, under the influence of, in possession of illegal drugs or 
alcohol while on duty, or that the employee is abusing illegal drugs or alcohol 
which is affecting job performance or represents a threat to the safety of the 
employee, his co-workers, or the public. 

3) Routine Fitness For Dutv. The City will require a drug test during the annual 
medical examination and any time an employee is referred to a physician for a 
fitness for duty examination. 

4) After-care monitoring. Anytime within two years after an employee has tested 
positive for the presence of illegal drugs or alcohol or two years after completing 
initial rehabilitation, whichever is later is subject to follow-up testing. 

27 



ATTACHMENT A 

C) Tests 

I) Whenever an employee or applicant is required to be tested they shall provide 
urine or blood specimens as directed by the City contracted collection/testing 
facility. 

2) Testing/collection shall be conducted at a City contracted facility. Testing will be 
conducted in accordance with U.S. Department of Health & Human Services and 
NIDA guidelines. Post accident testing will also be conducted in accordance with 
the Florida Workers' Compensation guidelines and positive test results will be 
reported to the insurance carrier. 

3) The type of tests to be conducted will be determined by the City in compliance 
with applicable Federal and State Laws. A listing of the drugs for which an 
individual will be tested shall be provided immediately prior to the test and shall 
include but not be limited to the following: alcohol, amphetamines, barbiturates 
benzodiazepines, cannabinoids, cocaine/cocaine metabolite, opiates and 
phencyclidine. The City reserves the right to test for additional drugs upon 
advance notice. 

When an employee tests positive on an initial test a confirming test will be 
included in the testing procedure. 

4) Any employee or applicant scheduled for testing has the right to consult the 
testing laboratory for technical information regarding prescription and 
nonprescription medication. 

5) The City shall pay for the costs of any tests it requires. 

6) An applicant who refuses to submit to substance abuse testing will not be eligible 
for hire. Any employee who refuses to submit to substance abuse testing will be 
subject to discharge. 

7) Employees required to be tested shall be driven to the testing facility by the City. 
Under no circumstance is an employee suspected of drug or alcohol abuse to be 
allowed to drive his/herself to a test facility. Picture identification is required at 
the testing site. 

8) Confidential History of Medication. Prior to any drug or alcohol testing, 
applicants and employees will be provided confidential "History of Medication" 
forms on which to report to an independent Medical Review Officer ("MRO") the 
use of prescription and non-prescription medications before being tested. 
Individuals testing positive for drug or alcohol use will be given an additional 
opportunity to provide this information to the MRO after being tested. A list 
developed by the Agency for Health Care Administration, of the most common 
drugs or medications (by brand name or common name, as well as by chemical 

28 



ATTACHMENT A 

name) which may alter or affect a drug test, is attached to this policy. The 
Medical Review Officer may also be consulted for technical information 
concerning prescription or nonprescription medication. 

0) Explanation of Test Results 

An applicant or employee who receives a positive confirmed drug test result may contest 
or explain the result to the MRO within five (5) working days after written notification 
of the positive test result. If an employees' or applicant's explanation or challenge is 
unsatisfactory to the MRO, the MRO will report the positive test result to the employer. 

The employer then has another five (5) working days to contact the employee or 
applicant again to advise him/her of the test result and the employee's right to appeal. 
The employee may contest the test result as provided by the Rules of the Division of 
Workers' Compensation by filing a claim for benefits with a Judge of Compensation 
Claims or, if no injury has occurred, with a court of competent jurisdiction. Any such 
challenge must be filed within 30 days after the individual receives notice that his or her 
explanation of the test result was unsatisfactory. In addition, at the individuals' own 
expense, the applicant or employee may request to have a portion of the specimen 
retested at a state approved testing facility. If the individual contests the test result, the 
laboratory must be notified by the employee. The applicant or employee must also notify 
the laboratory of any administrative or civil action filed pursuant to Florida Statute 
Chapter 440. 

E) Confidentiality 

All information gathered as a result of a drug test on applicants or employees shall be 
considered confidential and maintained separately from personnel records. Information 
may be released only under a "need to know" basis or if authorized by law. Any 
individual found to violate this confidentiality, will be subject to disciplinary action up 
to and including discharge. 

F) Arrest or Conviction for Drug-Related Offenses 

Any employee who is either arrested, indicted or convicted of a drug or alcohol related 
violation must report this information to his or her Supervisor no later than five (5) days 
after such arrest, indictment or conviction. Any employee who is convicted of drug or 
alcohol charges, may be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of 
employment 

G) Violations 

1. Drugs 

a) Applicants If applicants test positive they shall be considered ineligible for 
employment for a period of one year from the date of the test. 

29 



ATTACHMENT A 

Employees - If an employee tests positive for being under the influence 
while on duty or when questioned by a superior officer admits illegal or 
inappropriate usage: 

I) I st incident of positive results- Disciplinary action shall be issued 
which shall include at minimum a suspension. Any employee retained 
shall be offered a rehabilitation option as a condition of continued 
employment. Failure to accept rehabilitation or to complete rehabilitation 
shall be cause for immediate dismissal. 

Cost of rehabilitation shall be the employees responsibility, however it 
shall be coordinated with any insurance or EAPS provided by the City. 

2) 2nd incident of positive results-the employee will be immediately 
dismissed. 

b) Selling or Possessing Illegal Drugs: 

Employees found to be selling or possessing drugs shall be turned over to 
the local authorities. The City shall also take any disciplinary action it 
deems appropriate up to and including termination. Conviction of any of 
the above offenses will result in termination of employment. 

2. Alcohol 

a) Under the Influence of Alcohol 

Positive Test Results: 

Applicants - If applicants test positive they shall be considered ineligible 
for employment for a period of one year from the date of the test. 

Employees - If an employee tests positive for being under the influence 
while on duty: 

l) I st incident of positive results-the employee will receive a 
disciplinary suspension and referred to the EAP. 

2) 2nd incident of positive results-Disciplinary action shall be issued 
by the City. Where the City determines it is appropriate, the employee 
may be offered a rehabilitation option as a condition of continued 
employment. Failure to accept rehabilitation or to complete it shall be 
cause for immediate dismissal. 

Any further incident -- the employee will be immediately dismissed. 

Cost of rehabilitation shall be the employee's responsibility, however, it 

30 



AITACHMENT A 

shall be coordinated with any insurance or EAPS provided by the City. 

b) Possessing Alcohol on City premises or while on duty: 

Employees found to be using or possessing alcohol on City premises or 
while on duty shall face disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment. (Exception see page 4 "Exception"). 

3. Supervisors. Supervisors who observe or have knowledge of employees 
committing any of the prohibitions of this policy are required to take appropriate 
action. Failure to do so will result in disciplinary action up to and including 
dismissal. 

31 



ATTACHMENT A 

ARTICLE40 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

40.1 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this 
Agreement, each had the unlimited rights and opportunity to make demands and 
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area 
of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by 
the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this 
Agreement. Therefore, Management and the Union for the duration of the 
Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees 
that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any 
subject matter not specifically referred to, or covered in this Agreement even 
though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or 
contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed 
this Agreement. This article shall not be construed to in any way restrict parties 
from commencing negotiations on or about May 31 , 2017 in order to negotiate an 
agreement to take effect upon termination of this Agreement. 

40.2 This agreement shall take effect on June 1, 2014 and shall remain in force up to 
and including May 31 , 2017. 

40.3 The City and the Union agree to reopen Wages (Article 34) by no later than May 
31 , 2016. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their signatures this_ day of ----~ 
2014. 

FOR THE CITY: FOR THE UNION: 

William C. Latham, Mayor Shawn O'Shell, President 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Judy Bullock, City Clerk 

32 



ATTACHMENT A 

SCHEDULE A 

400 $11.74 $12.09 $12.44 

FIREFIGHTER $34,186.88 $35,206.08 $36,225.28 

401 $13.82 $16.67 $19.51 

FIREFIGHTER/ENGINEER $40,243.84 $48,543.04 $56,813.12 

402 $17.20 $20.20 $23.19 

LIEUTENANT $50,086.40 $58,822.40 $67,529.28 

403 $24.08 $28.28 $32.47 

TRAINING/SAFETY LIEUTENANT $50,086.40 $58,822.40 $67,537.60 

33 



JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

City of June 6, 2014 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904 247 6274 

Fax 904.270 1 642 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: George D. Forbes 
City Manager 

From: Harry E. Royal 
Finance Officer 

RE: Revision of Investment Policy 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Resolution No. 1934-2014 revising City of Jacksonville Beach Investment 
Policy for Operating Funds, 

BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 218.415, the City of Jacksonville Beach adopted a 
written investment policy for operating funds in April 2, 2012. Our investment 
advisors, Bogdahn Group, have recommended the following changes in our 
investment policy 

• Amending our investment policy for operating funds to increase the 
maximum maturity of bond investments from 5 to 7 years. 

• Increasing the allowable allocation from 50% to 60% for funds invested in 
United States Government agencies, non-negotiable interest bearing time 
certificates of deposit, and directly invested corporate notes. 

• Authorizing the controlled use of foreign bonds that issue U.S. registered 
securities (provided they meet all other investment policy qualifications) in 
the City's professional managed bond portfolios. 

It is the opinion of Bogdahn Group that the recommended amendments to the 
investment policy will enhance yield benefits and more than offset any 
incremental risk in the portfolio. 

In compliance with in Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, the primary objective of 
our investment policy is preservation of capital. In keeping with that objective, the 
changes in the investment policy recommended by Bogdahn Group should 
improve investment returns while only slightly increasing investment risk. Copies 
of the proposed revised investment policy, Bogdahn Group's recommendation 



letter, and a table summarizing the proposed investment policy changes are 
attached to this memorandum. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1934-2014 revising City of Jacksonville Beach Investment 
Policy for Operating Funds. 



FROM: 
TO: 
DATE: 
RE: 

Troy Brown & Daniel Johnson 
Harry Royal 
April 11 , 2014 
City of Jacksonville Beach Investment Policy Revisions 

We polled each of the City's investment managers regarding the challenges the current 
Investment Policy Statement (IPS) presents in the current market environment. We also asked 
what potential revision(s) would have the highest impact on each manager's ability to exceed 
his respective benchmark. Our inquiry clearly expressed our primary interest in receiving 
suggestions aiming to increase each manager's flexibility without substantially altering the 
overall conservative risk profile of the City's portfolio. 

The suggested changes are redl ined in the attached IPS. The substantive changes are also 
summarized with comments in the table below. 

Current IPS Revision Description 

Maximum 
maturity of 5 
years 

Holding limits 
of 25% or 50% 
on non-
Treasury 
securities 

U.S. corporate 
issuer 
restriction 

Asset-Backed 
Securities 
(ABS) not 
mentioned 

Benchmark 

Maximum 
effective 
maturity of 7 
years 

Holding limit of 
60% on non-
Treasury 
securities 

Non-U.S. 
corporate 
securities 
allowed 

Clarified as 
corporate 
securities 

Broadened 

Various maturity limitations were identified by each of the City's 
managers for potential revision. This revision provides greater 
flexibility in portfolio design by authorizing a broader spectrum of 
securities to consider. The "effective maturity" language 
clarification has already been provided to each of the managers 
in their IPS addendums. This language moves the clarification 
up to the City's IPS. 

The large limitation on corporate securities was identified by 
each of the City's managers as a significant restriction. For 
flexibility and consistency, we are recommending a flat holding 
limit of 60% for Agency, corporate and municipal securities. 

We expanded corporate securities to include Non-U.S. 
securities issues in U.S. Dollars (Toyota, etc.). This will greatly 
expand the universe of investments available to managers and 
improve portfolio diversification. Of the 1,273 unique securities 
in the Barclays 1-5 year A or better index, 462 are from non-U.S. 
issuers. This represents an increase of over 56% from the 81 1 
unique bonds currently oermitted. 

The ABS language clarification has already been provided to 
each of the managers in their IPS addendums. This language 
moves the darification up to the City's IPS. 

Since the City's investment portfolio is now represented by a 
number of portfolio managers and benchmarks, we broadened 
the benchmark language. 

We are happy to review and discuss these changes with the City Council. Please contact us if 
you have any questions. 

4901 Vineland Road <: Suite 600 '\. Ortando, Florida 32811 
Telephone (866) 240-7932 {' Facsimile (863) 292-8717 

www.bogdahngroup.com 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
I Summary of Proposed Investment Polley Updates 

Given the challenges investors are facing in the current bond market environment, we conducted 
discussions with the City's various investment managers regarding incremental changes to the investment 
policy that would enhance the ability to add value above each manager's benchmark. 

A summary of the highest impact changes, along with potential benefits and risks, is detailed below: 

Current IPS· Suggested Rev1s1on Potential Benefits Potential Risks 

- Increased opportunity set across various bond sectors 

Maximum maturity Maximum effective 
- Increased portfolio diversification 

of 5 years maturity of 7 years 
- Increased ability to actively manage yield curve position and - Modest increase in yield curve risk 

duration of the portfolio 
- Incremental yield pick-up and enhanced total return 

Holding limits ranging 
- Increased opportunity set aaoss various bond sectors 

from 25% to 50% for 
Holding limit of 60% - Increased portfolio diversification 

non-Treasury 
for non-Treasury - Increased ability k> actively manage portfolio structure during - Modest increase in credit/spread risk 
securities various market conditions 

securities 
- Incremental yield pick-up and enhanced total return 

U.S. corporate Non-U.S. corporate 
- Increased opportunity set within corporate sector 

- Can Introduce oountry/geopotitical 
issuer restriction securities allowed 

- Increased portfolio diversification within corporate sector 
risk into the portfolio 

- Incremental yield pick-up and enhanced total return 

Asset-Backed 
Clarified as corporate - Clarification of a security type commonly used in portfolio 

Securities (ABS) - None 
not mentioned 

securities management that is not currently defined in the policy 

Benchmark Broadened - More accurately measure the value added by each manager - None 

The Bogdahn Group recommends the adoption of each policy change. 



Introduced By: ______ _ 
Adopted: ________ _ 

RESOLUTION NO. 1934-2014 

A RESOLUTION TO MODIFY THE INVESTMENT 
POLICY FOR CITY OPERA TING FUNDS 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute 218.415 provides for the types of investments in which a 
local government is authorized to invest through a formally adopted written investment policy, or 
pursuant to those types of investments specifically authorized by state statutes. 

WHEREAS, the City previously developed and adopted a written investment policy to 
govern the investment of City funds in compliance with the authorized investment guidelines in 
the state statutes. 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend the current investment policy to allow greater 
flexibility in the current bond market environment by making changes regarding maximum bond 
maturity, the allowable percentage allocation of non-Treasury bond investments, and allowing 
investment in foreign securities issued by corporations operating in the United States. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY O F J ACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the lnvestment Policy dated April 2, 2012 is hereby amended by the City 
as provided in the revised investment policy dated June 16, 2014. 

Section 2. All Resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

AUTHENTICATED this _____ _ day of _______ , A.O., 2014. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Judy Bullock, CITY CLERK 

(SEAL) 

Attest: 

By: _ _________ ~ 

City Clerk 

Res. No. 1934-2014 
Page I of I 



Investment Policy 
City of Jacksonville Beach 

A.pril 2, 2012 

June 16, 2014 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

I. PURPOSE 3 

[I. SCOPE 3 

Ill. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 3 

lV. AUTHORITY FOR INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND TRANSACTIONS 4 

Y. STANDARD OF PRUDENCE 4 

YI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 4 

Yll. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND INVESTMENT PROCEDURES 4 

VHI. CONTINUING EDUCATION 5 

IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 5 

x. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 5 

XI. COMPETITIVE SELECTION OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS 6 

xn. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 6 

XHI. DERIVATIVES AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 13 

XlV. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 13 

XV. REPORTING 13 

XVI. THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 13 

XVII. INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 16 

ATTACHMENT: GLOSSARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT TERMS 



I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to set forth the investment objectives and parameters for the management 
of public funds of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida (hereinafter "City"). These policies are 
designed to ensure the prudent management of public funds, the availability of operating and capital 
funds when needed and an investment return competitive with comparable funds and financial market 
indices. 

II. SCOPE 

In accordance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, this investment policy applies to the investment 
of public funds in excess of the amounts needed to meet current expenses, which includes cash and 
investment balances of the following funds : 

);> General Fund 
};;>- Special Revenue Funds 
};;>- Capital Projects Funds 
};;>- Enterprise Funds 
};;>- mternal Service Funds 
};;>- Trust and Agency Funds 

This policy does not apply to the investment of principal, interest, reserve, construction, capitalized 
interest, redemption, or escrow accounts created by ordinance or resolution pursuant to the issuance of 
bonds where the investments are held by an authorized depository. This policy does not apply to funds 
not under investment control of the City; such as, the Police Officers' Retirement System, the 
Firefighters' Retirement System, and the General Employees Retirement System. 

III. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

Safety of Principal Safety - Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments of the City of Jacksonville Beach shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The portfolio should be structured to minimize losses, 
whether they may be from securities defaults, theft, or the impact of adverse market conditions. 

Liquidity - The next most important objective is to provide sufficient liquidity to allow for quick 
conversion of investments to cash easily and rapidly with minimum market impact to meet its 
operating, payroll and capital requirements. To the extent possible, the City of Jacksonville Beach will 
match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. 

Yield - Investment portfolios shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and 
liquidity needs. Return on investment is of least importance compared to the safety and liquidity 
objectives described above. The core of investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in 
anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed. 

Diversification - Investments held should be diversified to the extent practicable to control the risk of 
loss resulting from overconcentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer, instrument, dealer, or bank 
through which financial instruments are bought and sold. 

3 



IV. AUTHORITY FOR INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES AND TRANSACTIONS 

The responsibility for providing oversight and direction in regard to the management of the investment 
program resides with the City' s Finance Officer. In addition, the management of all investment 
transactions for all City funds in the investment program and investment transactions is the 
responsibility of the Finance Officer. The Finance Officer shall establish written procedures for the 
operation of the investment activities and a system of internal accounting and administrative controls to 
regulate the investment transactions. The City may employ one or more investment managers to assist 
in managing the investment of the City's funds. Such investment manager must be registered under the 
lnvestment Advisors Act of 1940. 

V. STANDARDS OF PRUDENCE 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the " Prudent Person" standard and 
shall be applied in the context of managing the overall investment program. The Prudent Person 
standard is as follows: 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of 
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety 
of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived from the investment. 

While the standard of prudence to be used by the City' s staff is the Prudent Person standard, any person 
or firm (investment professional) hired or retained to invest, monitor, or advise concerning these assets 
shall be held to the higher standard of .. Prudent Expert". The standard shall be that in investing and 
reinvesting moneys and in acquiring, retaining, managing, and disposing of investments of these funds, 
the investment professional shall exercise: the judgment, care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and inte!Jigence, acting in a like 
capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and 
with like aims by diversifying the investments of the funds, so as to minimize the risk, considering the 
probable income as well as the probable safety of their capital. 

VI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

The City's staff involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that 
could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to 
make impartial investment decisions. Also, employees involved in the investment process shall 
disclose to the City any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business with 
the City, and they shall further disclose any material personal financial/investment positions that could 
be related to the performance of the City's investment program. 

VII. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND INVESTMENT PROCEDURES 

The Finance Officer shall establish a system of internal controls and operational procedures that are 
designed to prevent losses of funds, which might arise from fraud, employee error, and 
misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees. No person may engage in an 
investment transaction except as authorized under the terms of this policy. 

lndependent auditors as a normal part of the annual financial audit to the City shall conduct a review of 
the system of internal controls to ensure compliance with policies and procedures. 

4 



VIII. CONTINUING EDUCATION 

The Finance Officer and/or his designee responsible for making investment decisions shall annually 
complete eight (8) hours of continuing education in subjects or courses of study related to investment 
practices and products. 

IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 

The Finance Officer shall maintain a list of financial institutions and broker/dealers that are approved 
for investment purposes ("Qualified Institutions"). Only firms meeting one of the following 
requirements shall be eligible to serve as Qualified Institutions: 

A. The firm must comply with all of the following requirements. 

1. Primary and regional dealers that qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15 C3- I (uniform net capital rule); 

ii. Capital of no less than $10,000,000; 

111. Registered as a dealer under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 

iv. A member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA); 

v. Registered to sell securities in Florida; and 

vi. The firm and assigned broker have been engaged in the business of effecting 
transactions in U.S. government and agency obligations for at least five (5) consecutive 
years; or, 

B. Public Depositories qualified by the Treasurer of the State of Florida, in accordance with 
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 

C. Qualified Public Depositories may provide the services of a securities dealer through a Section 
20 subsidiary of the financial institution. 

D. Direct issuers of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances. 

X. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 

To the extent possible, an attempt will be made to match investment maturities with known cash needs 
and anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless otherwise restricted in the '·Authorized Investments" 
section of this policy. IA•t'estRteRt investment maturities shall not exceed an effective maturitv of 
sevenff¥e (~1) years. 

5 



XI. COMPETITIVE SELECTION OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS 

After the Finance Officer or the investment manager has determined the approximate maturity date 
based on cash flow needs and market conditions and has analyzed and selected one or more optimal 
types of investments, a minimum of three (3) qualified banks and/or approved broker/dealers must be 
contacted and asked to provide bids/offers on investments in question. Bids will be held in confidence 
until the bid deemed to best meet the investment objectives is determined and selected. However, if 
obtaining bids/offers are not feasible and appropriate, investments may be purchased utilizing the 
comparison to current market price method on an exception basis. Acceptable current market price 
providers include Bloomberg or other similar industry sources. 

Examples of when this method may be used include: 

A. When time constraints due to unusual circumstances preclude the use of the competitive 
bidding process 

B. When no active market exists for the issue being traded due to the age or depth of the issue 

C. When a security is unique to a single dealer, for example, a private placement 

D. When the transaction involves new issues or issues in the "when issued" market 

Overnight sweep investments are not required to be bid, but may be placed with the City's depository 
bank relating to the demand account for which the repurchase agreement was purchased. 

From time to time, securities may be purchased at a premium or traded for other securities to improve 
yield, maturity or credit risk. For these transactions, a loss may be incurred for accounting purposes to 
achieve optimal investment return, provided any of the following occurs with respect to the replacement 
security: 

A. The yield has been increased, or 

B. The maturity has been reduced or lengthened, or 

C. The quality of the investment has been improved 

XII. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 

Investments should be made subject to the cash flow needs and such cash flows are subject to revisions 
as market conditions and the City's needs change. However, when the invested funds are needed in 
whole or in part for the purpose originally intended or for more optimal investments, the Finance 
Officer or the investment manager may sell the investment at the then-prevailing market price and place 
the proceeds into the proper account. 

Investments not listed in this policy are prohibited. 

The following are the investment requirements and allocation limits on security types, issuers, and 
maturities, as established by the City. The Finance Officer shall have the option to further restrict 
investment percentages from time to time based on market conditions, risk and diversification 
investment strategies. The percentage allocation requirements for investment types and issuers are 
calculated based on the market value of each investment. 

6 



A. The Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund 

1. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in the Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 100% of available funds may be invested in the Florida Local 
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. 

B. United States Government Securities 

I. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in negotiable direct obligations or obligations the principal and interest of which 
are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States Government. Such securities will 
include, but not be limited to the following: 

Cash Management Bills 
Treasury Securities - State and Local Government Series ('·SLGS") 
Treasury Bills 
Treasury Notes 
Treasury Bonds 
Treasury Strips 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of I 00% of available funds may be invested in the United States 
Government Securities. 

3. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum length te maturity of any direct investment in the United States 
Government Securities is an effective maturity of sevenl+Ye (Sl) years from the date of 
purchase. 

C. United States Government Agencies 

I. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in bonds, debentures or notes which may be subject to call, issued or guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by the United States Governments agencies, provided such 
obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government. 
Such securities will include, but not be limited to the following: 

Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 
-GNMA guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds 
-GNMA guaranteed pass-through obligations 

United States Export - Import Bank 

7 



-Direct obligations or fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial 
ownership 

Farmer Home Administration 
-Certificates of beneficial ownership 

Federal Financing Bank 
-Discount notes, notes and bonds 

Federal Housing Administration Debentures 
General Services Administration 
United States Maritime Administration Guaranteed 

-Title XI Financing 
New Communities Debentures 

-United States Government guaranteed debentures 
United States Public Housing Notes and Bonds 

-United States Government guaranteed public housing notes and bonds 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

-Project notes and local authority bonds 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of .s%0% of available funds may be invested in United States 
Government agencies. 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in individual United States 
Government agencies. 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum length te maturity for an investment in any United States Government 
agency security is an effective maturity of sevenffiie (~1) years from the date of 
purchase. 

D. Federal Instrumentalities (United States Government sponsored agencies) 

I. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in bonds, debentures or notes which may be subject to call, issued or guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by United States Government sponsored agencies (Federal 
Instrumentalities) which are non-full faith and credit agencies limited to the following: 

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 
Federal Home Loan Bank or its City banks (FHLB) 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie-Macs) including Federal -
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation participation certificates 
Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie-Mae) 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of .s%00/o of available funds may be invested in Federal Instrumentalities. 

8 



3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in individual Federal 
Instrumentalities 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum leRglh le maturity for an investment in any Federal Instrumentality 
security is an effective maturitv of seve~,)1) years from the date of purchase. 

E. Interest Bearing Time Deposit or Saving Accounts 

1. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in non-negotiable interest bearing time certificates of deposit or savings accounts 
in banks organized under the laws ohhis state and/or in national banks organized under 
the laws of the United States and doing business and situated in the State of Florida, 
provided that any such deposits are secured by the Florida Security for Public Deposits 
Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. Additionally, the bank shall not be listed with any 
recognized credit watch information service. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of .s%0% of available funds may be invested in non-negotiable interest 
bearing time certificates of deposit. 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be deposited with any one issuer. 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum maturity on any certificate shall be no greater than three (3) years from 
the date of purchase. 

F. Repurchase Agreements 

1. Purchase Authorization 

a. Invest in repurchase agreements composed of only those investments based on 
the requirements set forth by the City's Master Repurchase Agreement. All 
firms are required to sign the Master Repurchase Agreement prior to the 
execution of a repurchase agreement transaction. 

b. A third party custodian with whom the City has a current custodial agreement 
shall hold the collateral for all repurchase agreements with a term longer than 
one ( 1) business day. A clearly marked receipt that shows evidence of 
ownership must be supplied to the Finance Officer and retained. 

c. Securities authorized for collateral are negotiable direct obligations of the 
United States Government, Government Agencies, and Federal 
Instrumentalities with effective maturities under seven fi.re.(,)1) years and must 

9 



have a market value for the principal and accrued interest of 102 percent of the 
value and for the term of the repurchase agreement. Immaterial short-term 
deviations from 102 percent requirement are permissible only upon the 
approval of the Finance Officer. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested in repurchase agreements 
excluding one (1) business day agreements and overnight sweep agreements. 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested with any one institution. 

4. Limits on Maturities 

The maximum length to maturity of any repurchase agreement is 90 days from the date 
of purchase. 

G. Commercial Paper 

1. Purchase Authori:zation 

Invest in commercial paper of any United States company that is rated, at the time of 
purchase, "Prime-I " by Moody's and "A- 1" by Standard & Poor' s (prime commercial 
paper). 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be directly invested in prime commercial 
paper backed by a letter of credit from a bank. 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 10% of available funds may be invested with any one issuer. 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum leRgtR le maturity for prime commercial paper shall be 270 days from 
the date of purchase. 

H. Corporate Notes 

1. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in corporate notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the 
United States~ eF--by depository institutions licensed by the United States, or bv 
corporations organized outside of the United States that issue securities denominated in 
United States dollars that have a long term debt rating, at the time or purchase, from at 
least two of the following rating agencies with minimum ratings as follows: Moody's-~ 
A:. , Standard & Poors-;_A.:. or Fitches-;_A:.. Corporate notes that were authorized at 
the time of purchase with an A or better rating by two of the rating agencies listed 

10 



above that are subsequently downgraded and no longer qualify as an authorized 
investment may be held until it is economically feasible to dispose of the security. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of ~0% of available funds may be directly invested in corporate notes. 
Asset Backed Securities CABS) will be considered corporate notes for purchase 
authorization. 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 5% of available funds may be invested with any one issuer. 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum leRgtk ta maturity for corporate notes shall be an effective maturitv of 
seven#We (~1) years from the date of purchase. 

I. Bankers' Acceptances 

1. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in Bankers' Acceptances issued by a domestic bank or a federally chartered 
domestic office of a foreign bank, which are eligible for purchase by the Federal 
Reserve System, at the time of purchase, the short-term paper is rated, at a minimum, 
'·P-1 " by Moody's Investors Services and "A-1 " Standard & Poor's. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 10% of available funds may be directly invested in Bankers' 
Acceptances 

3. Limits on Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 10% of available funds may be invested with any one issuer. 

4. Maturity Limitations 

The maximum leRgtk ta maturity for Bankers' Acceptances shall be 180 days from the 
date of purchase. 

J. State and/or Local Government Taxable and/or Tax-Exempt Debt 

I. Purchase Authorization 

Invest in state and/or local government taxable and/or tax-exempt debt, general 
obligation and/or revenue bonds, rated at least "AA:" by Moody's and "AA:" by 
Standard & Poor's for long-term debt, or rated at least "MIG- I" by Moody's and "SP-
1" by Standard & Poor's for short-term debt. 

11 



2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 10% of available funds may be invested in taxable and tax-exempt 
debts. 

3. Maturity Limitations 

A maximum leRgtk te maturity for an investment in any state or local government debt 
security is an effective maturity of sevemkfee (;1) years from the date of purchase. 

K. Registered Investment Companies (Money Market Mutual Funds) 

I . Investment Authorization 

Invest in shares of open-end or no-load money market mutual funds provided such 
funds are registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and operate in 
accordance with 17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7, which stipulates that money market funds must 
have an average weighted maturity of 90 days or less. The prospectus of such funds 
must indicate that the share value shall not fluctuate. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 100% ofavailable funds may be invested in money market funds. 

3. Limits of Individual Issuers 

A maximum of 25% of available funds may be invested with any one money market 
fund Money market sweep vehicles that are offered by the 3rd party custodian of the 
investment portfolio that consist of 100% Government obligations are exempt from this 
limitation. 

4. Rating Requirements 

The money market funds shall be rated "AAA" or " AAA" or better by Standard & 
Poor's, or the equivalent by another rating agency. 

5. Due Diligence Requirements 

A current prospectus will be obtained for each money market fund held for investment 

L. Intergovernmental Investment Pool 

1. Investment Authorization 

Intergovernmental investment pools that are authorized pursuant to the Florida 
lnterlocal Cooperation Act, as provided in Section 163.01 , Florida Statutes. 

2. Portfolio Composition 

A maximum of 30% of available funds may be invested in intergovernmental 
investment pools. 

12 



3. Due Diligence Requirements 

A thorough investigation of any pooled fund is required prior to investing, and on a 
continual basis. A current prospectus will be obtained for each pooled fund held for 
investment. 

xm. DER.IV ATIVES AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 

The investment in any derivative products or the use of reverse repurchase agreements is not permitted. 
A "derivative" is defined as a financial instrument the value of which depends on, or is derived from, 
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices or asset values. This definition of "derivative" 
instruments specifically excludes mortgage backed securities offered by Government agencies. 

XIV. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 

ln order to assist in the evaluation of the portfolio' s performance, the City will use performance 
benchmarks for short-term and long-term portfolios. The use of benchmarks will allow the City to 
measure its returns against other investors in the same markets. 

A. The State Board of Administration's, Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund ("SBA Pool"), 
monthly rate of return will be used as a benchmark as compared to the portfolios' book value rate 
of return for current operating funds. 

B. Investments that have a longer-term investment horizon will be compared to the BaRk ef AFReriea 
I MeR'ill LyReh I 3 Year Ge .. ·ernmeRt IRaex er an eEJ1:1h•aleRt iREieK eeFRprisea ef U. S. Treas1:1f)· 
er GevernmeRt see1:1rities. The most appropriate index._ This index will be determined at the time 
of investment ... stated in an addendum to this policy, and will have a duration and asset FRi:K 
structure that approximates the portfolio being measured,. aREi will ee 1:1til~ea as a eeRehFRarll te ee 
eeFRparea te the pertfelie' s tetel rate ef ret1:1m. 

XV. REPORTING 

The Finance Officer shall provide a monthly summary investment report to the City Manager 
which reflects investments by type, percentage of total investments for each type, and the 
monthly weighted y ield. 

XVl. THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 

All securities, with the exception of certificates of deposits, shall be held with a third party custodian; 
and all securities purchased by, and all collateral obtained by the City should be properly designated as 
an asset of the City. The securities must be held in an account separate and apart from the assets of the 
financial institution. A third party custodian is defined as any bank depository chartered by the Federal 
Government, the State of Florida, or any other state or territory of the United States which has a branch 
or principal place of business in the State of Florida as defined in Section 658.12, Florida Statutes, or by 
a national association organized and existing under the laws of the United States which is authorized to 
accept and execute trusts and which is doing business in the State of Florida. Certificates of deposits 
maintained by book-entry at the issuing bank shall clearly identify the City as the owner. 

The Finance Officer shall execute on behalf of the City, third party custodial agreement(s) with its 
bank(s) and depository institution(s). Such agreements may include letters of authority from the City, 
details as to the responsibilities of each party, method of notification of security purchases, sales, 
delivery, procedures related to repurchase agreements and wire transfers, safekeeping and transaction 

13 



costs, procedures in case of wire failure or other unforeseen mishaps and describing the liability of each 
party. 

The custodian shall accept transaction instructions only from those persons who have been duly 
authorized by the City and which authorization has been provided, in writing, to the custodian. No 
withdrawal of securities, in whole or in part, shall be made from safekeeping, shall be permitted unless 
by such a duly authorized person. 

The custodian shall provide the Finance Officer with safekeeping receipts that provide detail 
information on the securities held by the custodian. Security transactions between a broker/dealer and 
the custodian involving the purchase or sale of securities by transfer of money or securities must be 
made on a '·delivery vs. payment" basis, if applicable, to ensure that the custodian will have the security 
or money, as appropriate, in hand at the conclusion of the transaction. Securities held as collateral shall 
be held free and clear of any liens. 

XVIL INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW 

The Finance Officer shall review the policy annually and make recommendations to the City Council 
for modification thereto. 

14 



GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

"Authorized Signers" - City of Jacksonville Beach employees authorized to approve agreements and 
transactions with banks and financial institutions. These employees consist of the City Manager, Assistant City 
Manager, Finance Officer, Budget Officer, and Accounting Supervisor. 

"Book Entry Securities" -A system in which securities are not represented by engraved pieces of paper but are 
maintained in computerized records at the Federal Reserve in the names of the member banks, which in tum, 
keep records of securities they own as well as those they are holding for customers. 

"Collateral" - securities, evidence of deposit or property which a borrower pledges to secure repayment of a 
loan. Also refers to securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of public monies. 

"Commercial Paper" - An unsecured promissory note with a fixed maturity of no more than 270 days which is 
normally sold at a discount from face value. 

"Delivery vs. Payment" - one of two methods of delivery of securities. Delivery versus payment is delivery of 
securities with an exchange of money for the securities. The second method, delivery versus receipt is delivery 
of securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities. 

"Master Repurchase Agreement" - a written contract covering all future transactions between the parties to 
repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements that establishes each party's rights in the transactions. 

"Primary Government Securities Dealers" - a group of government securities dealers who submit daily reports 
of market activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and 
are subject to its informal oversight. Primary securities dealers include Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) registered securities broker-dealers, banks and few unregulated firms. 

"Qualified Public Depository" - a financial institution which does not claim exemption from the payment of any 
sales or compensating use or ad valorem taxes under the laws of the State of Florida and which has been 
approved by the Public Deposit Protection Commission to hold public deposits and which has segregated 
eligible collateral having a value of not less than its maximum liability for the benefit of the Public Deposit 
Protection Commission. 

"Repurchase Agreement" - a transaction in which a governmental entity transfers cash to a broker-dealer or 
financial institution, the broker-dealer or financial institution transfers securities or ownership interest in 
securities to the governmental entity and promises to repay the cash plus interest in exchange for the return of 
the same securities. 

"Reverse Repurchase Agreement" - a transaction in which a governmental entity transfers securities to the 
broker-dealer or financial institution in exchange for cash, and promises to repay cash plus interest in exchange 
for the return of the same securities. The cash obtained in these transactions is often used for operating or 
capital purposes or is invested in other securities to improve yield. 

15 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

City of MEMORANDUM 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.24 7 6263 

Fax: 904.247.6169 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Karen Nelson, Human Resources Director 

Ordinance Number 2014-8055, Amending Chapter 2, Article V, 

Division 5, 'General Employees' Retirement System', of the Code 

of Ordinances 

May 21, 2014 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8055, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 5, 

'General Employees' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Jacksonville Beach. 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council adopted Ordinance Number 2013-8035 on November 18, 2013, 

amending the General Employees' Pension Plan. One of the changes to the Plan 

was to replace the existing DROP program with a Back-DROP program effective 

November 25, 2013. The City's intention was that the Back-DROP benefit be 

available to all current members of the Plan who were not participating in DROP 

on the effective date and all future members of the plan. 

The language in Section 2-162.9 of the Ordinance does not clearly provide for 

active employees who were eligible for retirement before November 25, 2013 to 

elect the Back-DROP option upon retirement. Ordinance Number 2014-8055 is a 

technical correction of the language to ensure that the Plan is administered in 

accordance with the City's intent to provide an equitable benefit to all eligible 

members. The amendment also defines the Back-DROP date that is used to 

determine the amount of the benefit. Ordinance Number 2014-8055 amends the 

language as follows: 



Memorandum to George D. Forbes 

May 21 , 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

1. Provides that employees eligible for retirement before November 25, 

2013 may elect the Back-DROP option upon separation from 

employment. 

2. Provides a definition of the Back-DROP date. 

3. Replaces the term "normal retirement date" with "Back-DROP daten 

This amendment does not have any impact on the level of benefits that the Plan 

provides to its members. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8055, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 5, 

'General Employees' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Jacksonville Beach, to clarify the provision for Back-DROP. 



introduced By: _________ _ 
1st Reading: __________ _ 
2nd Reading: ______ _ _ __ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8055 

AN ORDINA CE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AMEND! G CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 5, 
GENERAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREME T SYSTEM, OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, AMENDING 
SECTION 2-162.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT HEREWJTH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 5, 
General Employees' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville 
Beach, Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-162.9, Amount of a pension, to read as 
follows: 

Section 2-162.9, Amount of a pension. 

**** 
(f) Back-DROP. Effective No ember 25, 2013, and subject to the provisions of this section, 
eligible members may elect to participate in the Back-DROP in accordance with this subsection 
(f). 

(1 ) Eligibility of member to participate in the Back-DROP. A member who is employed 
and not participating in DROP and 1Nho reaches normal retirement eligibility on or after 
November 25, 2013, and continues employment beyond the normal retirement date and 
any member who reaches normal retirement eligibility on or after November 25. 2013 
and continues employment beyond the normal retirement date, is eligible to elect the 
Back-DROP. The member shall advise the city and the retirement system in writing of 
their Back-DROP election prior to separation from employment. A member may elect 
the Back-DROP only once. 

(2) Back-DROP date. A member's Back-DROP date shall be a date selected by the 
member that is on or after the member's normal retirement date but no more than thirty 
six (36) months prior to their separation date. 

Qi) Maximum Back-DROP Period. An eligible member may elect the Back-DROP for a 
period equal to the number of months the member has been employed beyond the normal 
retirement date, up to a maximum period of thirty-six (36) months. 

Page I of2 



~) Benefits payable under the Back-DROP. A member who elects the Back-DROP 
shall be entitled to a monthly pension determined as of the member's Back-DROP 
normal retirement date, plus a lump sum payment equal to the pension benefits the 
member would have received had he/she retired on the Back-DROP normal reti-remeat 
date, with interest at the rate of 3% per annum. The lump sum Back-DROP benefit, less 
applicable withholding taxes, shall be distributed to the member within 60 days following 
separation from employment. Alternatively, a member may elect to roll some or all of 
the lump sum Back-DROP benefit into an IRA or other qualified retirement plan, in 
accordance with applicable law. 

(~4) Forfeiture of retirement benefits. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to 
remove Back-DROP participants from the scope of Section 8(d), Art. II of the State 
Constitution, and Section 112.3173, Florida Statutes. Back-DROP participants who 
commit a specified offense while employed will be subject to forfeiture of all retirement 
benefits, including Back-DROP benefits, pursuant to those provisions of law. 

(~) Administration of program. The board of trustees shall make such rules as are 
necessary for the effective and efficient administration of this subsection. The retirement 
system shall not be required to advise members of the federal tax consequences of an 
election related to the Back-DROP, but may advise members to seek independent advice. 

SECTION 2. That is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the section, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Code are severable. and if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this Code shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Code. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption in 
accordance with the Charter of the City of Jacksonville Beach, except as otherwise specified 
above. 

SECTION 5. That this Ordinance was passed on the first reading at a regular meeting of the 
City Council on the day of 2014, and adopted on the second/final 
reading at a regular meeting of the City Council on the day of ____ _ 
2014. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Judy L. Bullock, City Clerk 

Page 2 of2 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

City of MEMORANDUM 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904 247.6263 

Fax: 904 247.6169 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: George D. Forbes, City Manager 

FROM: Karen Nelson, Human Resources Director 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Ordinance Number 2014-8056, Amending Chapter 2, Article V, 

Division 6, 'Police Officers' Retirement System', of the Code of 

Ordinances 

May 22, 2014 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8056, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 6, 

'Police Officers' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Jacksonville Beach. 

BACKGROUND 

In order to create a sustainable and fiscally responsible retirement system, the 

City proposed certain changes to the Police Officers' Retirement Plan. On May 

14, 2014, the Florida State Lodge, Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) held a 

ratification vote among its members approving the proposed changes. Ordinance 

Number 2014-8056 amends the Plan according to the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement as follows: 

• Provides for a maximum benefit of 90% of final average compensation or 

$90,000 annually, whichever is less. 

• Increases the vesting period from 5 years to 10 years. 

• Eliminates the early retirement benefit. 

• Excludes unused leave payouts and overtime in excess of 300 hours per 

calendar year from pensionable compensation (as required by state law). 

• Replaces the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) with Back-DROP. 



Memorandum to George D. Forbes 

May 22, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

• Increases the employee contribution from 6.45% to 7.95%. 

• Provides for accumulated additional premium tax revenues to be used to 

reduce the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan. 

The City's proposal preserves the current Defined Benefit Plan and the 3% 

multiplier. Employees with ten years or more of service on the effective date will 

retain the current retirement dates and employees age 50 with 1 O or more years 

of service on the effective date will retain the current early retirement benefit. See 

the attached schedule of current and proposed benefits for details. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8056, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 6, 

'Police Officers' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Jacksonville Beach. 



Provision 

Benefit Formula 

Normal 
Retirement Date 

Early Retirement 

Pensionable Pay 

Vesting 

DROP 

Employee Contribution 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
POLICE OFFICERS' PENSION PLAN 

Current Amended by Ordinance Number 2014-8056 

3% x final avg. comp. x service for first 30 3% x final avg. comp. x service 
years and 2% x service in excess of 30 years. ($90,000 or 90% maximum, whichever is less) 

(100% maximum) 

Age 52 with 25 years of service or Age 52 with 25 years of service or 
Age 55 with 5 years of service or 30 years of Age 55 with 10 years of service or 30 years of 

service regardless of age service regardless of age 

20 years of service or age 50 with 10 years of No early retirement 
service (Reduced Benefit) 

Base pay + 300 hours overtime per calendar 
Base pay + longevity + incentive pay + year + longevity + incentive pay, but 

overtime + 750 hours unused leave payout excluding, overtime in excess of 300 hours and 
leave payouts 

5 years 10 years 

DROP; 36 months; 3.5% interest Back-DROP; 36 months; 3% interest 

6.45% 7.95% 



Introduced By: _________ _ 
1st Reading: _________ _ 
2nd Reading: ________ _ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8056 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 6, POLICE 
OFFICERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, AMENDING 
SECTION 2-163.2, DEFINITIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.7, 
NORMAL RETIREMENT CONDITIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.8, 
VESTED TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP; AMENDING SECTION 
2-163.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.19A, 
EARLY RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.20, MEMBER 
CONTRIBUTIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-163.31, RESERVE FOR 
PENSION PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 2. Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 

Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163.2, Definitions, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-163.2. Definitions: 

As used in this division: 

* * * 
Compensation means the salary or wages paid a member for personal services rendered the 

city while a member of the retirement system. Salary and wages shall include longevity pay; 
overtime pay, shift differentials; incentive pay, pay for periods of absence from work by reason 
of vacation, holiday, and sickness; and deferred compensation amounts under deferred 
compensation programs recognized by the board of trustees. Effective January 1, 2009, 
compensation shall also include payments in consideration of unused vacation or sick leave up to 
a maximum of seven hundred fifty (750) hours. Compensation shall not include any 
remuneration or reimbursement not specifically stated to be included, such as allowances for 
clothing, equipment, cleaning, and travel; reimbursement of expenses; bonuses; termination of 
pay; severance pay; and the value of fringe benefits. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, a 
member's annual compensation in excess of the limitations set forth in Section 401(a)( l7) of the 
Internal Revenue Code shall be disregarded. However, for those members who commence 

Ordinance o. 2014-8056 Page I of7 



participation in the retirement system prior to the first plan year beginning after December 31 , 
1995, the limitation on compensation shall not be less than the amount that was allowed to be 
taken into account under the retirement system as in effect on July 1, 1993. Effective June 23, 
2014, compensation shall include base pay, longevity pay, incentive pay, and overtime pay in an 
amount not to exceed 300 hours per calendar year; and shall exclude overtime pay in excess of 
300 hours per calendar year, leave payouts and all other compensation. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, payments for overtime in excess of 300 hours per calendar year accrued as of June 23. 
2014 and attributable to service earned prior to June 23. 2014, shall be included in compensation 
even if payment is not made until on or after that date. 

* * * 

SECTION 2. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 

Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163.7, Normal retirement conditions, to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 2-163.7. Normal retirement conditions. 

(a) An individual may retire upon satisfaction of each of the following requirements: 

( 1) A wTitten application for retirement, in the form established by the board of trustees, has 
been filed with the retirement system. 

(2) Membership is terminated prior to the date of retirement. 

(3) The individual meets an applicable age and/or service requirement for normal 
retirement. 

(b) The age and/or service requirement for normal retirement is: 

(1) +he-For individuals with ten (10) or more years of credited service on June 23, 2014, or 
who have attained age fifty-five (55) with five or more years of credited service on that 
date: iadi'iid"tl&l has attaiaed age fifty-five (55) YeafS or older withand has five (5) or 
more years of credited service, or the iadivid"tl&l has attai:Red age fifty-two (52) or older 
withaad B.as twenty-five (25) or more years of credited service .. or the individual has 
attained thirty (30) years of credited service regardless of age. 

(2) Except as provided in subsection (b )( 1) above, for individuals with less than ten ( 10) 
years of credited service on June 23, 2014, and individuals hired on or after that date: 
age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited service, or age fifty-two (52) 
with twenty-five (25) or more years of credited service, or the individual has attained 
thirty (30) years of credited service regardless of age. 

(c) Upon retirement as provided in this section, an individual shall be paid a pension computed 
according to section 2-163.9 

Ordinance No. 2014-8056 Page 2 of7 



SECTION 3. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 

Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163 .8, Vested termination of membership, to 

read as follows: 

Sec. 2-163.8. Vested termination of membership. 

A member who has five (5) or more years of credited service on June 23, 2014 and who 
thereafter ceases to be a member, for a reason other than retirement or death, shall be a vested 
former member if the memeer has fi'<'e (5) or more years of eredited serYice at the ti-me 
memeership termiaates. A member who has less than five (5) years of credited service on June 
23, 2014, and members hired on or after that date, who cease to be a member, for a reason other 
than retirement or death, shall be a vested former member if the member has ten ( 10) or more 
years of credited service at the time membership terminates. A vested former member may retire 
upon satisfaction of the requirements of section 2-163.7. The benefit programs applicable to a 
vested former member shaJl be determined as of the date of termination of membership and shall 
not be affected by any subsequent change in benefit programs. In the event that a vested former 
member shall die from any cause before that member is eligible to retire as provided by section 
2-163. 7, then in that event the benefits of this Act granted to non-duty, death-in-service 
automatic survivor's pension shall go to the surviving beneficiaries of the vested former member. 

SECTION 4. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 

Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163.9, Amount of a pension, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-163.9. Amount of a pension. 

(a) (1) The amount of pension under optional form of payment I pursuant to section 2-163.10 
shall be equal to the sum of separate amounts determined in accordance with the benefit 
formula applicable to each retirement system for which the retiring individual has 
credited service in force. 

(2) The amount of pension attributable to credited service under a particular retirement 
system shall be equal to a fraction of the amount of pension determined as if the 
individual's total credited services were under the retirement system. The fraction shall 
be the individual's credited service under the retirement system over the individual's 
total credited service. 

(b) The benefit formula is: 

(1) For retirements with an effective date prior to October 1, 1990, two and one-half (2 Y:z) 
percent of final average compensation multiplied by credited service, to a maximum of 
seventy-five (75) percent of final average compensation. 

(2) For retirements with an effective date after September 30, 1990, three (3) percent of final 
average compensation multiplied by credited service, to a maximum of thirty (30) years, 

Ordinance No. 20 14-8056 Page 3 of7 



at which time the benefit will be reduced to two (2) percent of final average 
compensation multiplied by credited service for each additional year of service, subject 
to the limitations ofF.S. § 112.65. 

(3) Effective June 23. 2014, for individuals who are not eligible for normal retirement in 
accordance with Sec. 2-163.7(b)(l) on that date, three (3) percent of final average 
compensation multiplied by credited service. for all years of credited service earned on 
er-and after June 23. 2014. subject to the maximum benefit provided in paragraph (4) 
below. Such individuals shall retain their accrued benefits based on credited service 
earned prior to June 23. 2014. 

(4) Effective June 23. 2014. the maximum benefit shall be ninety (90%) percent of final 
average compensation or $90.000 annually, whichever is less; provided, any individual 
who has accrued a benefit percentage in excess of ninety (90%) percent or an annual 
benefit of more than $90.000 on June 23. 2014 shall retain that accrued benefit. but shall 
not accrue any additional benefit percentage after that date. 

(5) Notwithstanding the above, there shall be a minimum monthly benefit provided to 
retirants who have been retired for thirty (30) or more years or have accumulated ten 
(10) or more years of credited service, as periodically established by the city. Such 
monthly benefit shall be reduced by the applicable survivor benefit as elected by the 
retirant pursuant to section 2-163.10. The city shall make deposits into the police 
officers' retirement system equal to the full annual cost of such increase in benefit 
payments to achieve said minimum monthly benefit. 

(c) Payment of a pension granted under the provisions of section 2-1 63.7 with respect to normal 
retirement shall be suspended if the retirant becomes employed by the city. Suspension of 
payment shall become effective the first day of the calendar month coincident with or next 
following employment. Payment of the pension shall resume, without change in amount or 
conditions by reason of the employment, on the first day of the calendar month next 
following termination of employment. The employed retirant shall not be a member during 
the period of employment following retirement. 

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of this act, a member may not receive a benefit, which 
exceeds the maximum amount allowed under Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code, 
which is incorporated herein by reference. 

(e) Deferred Retirement Option Program. In general, and subject to the provisions of this 
section, the Deferred Retirement Option Program, hereinafter referred to as the DROP, is a 
program under which an eligible member of the retirement system may elect to participate 
prior to June 23. 2014, deferring receipt of retirement benefits while continuing employment 
with the city. The deferred monthly benefits shall accrue in the reserve for pension payments 
fund on behalf of the participant, plus interest compounded monthly, for the specified period 
of the DROP participation, as provided in subsection (e)(3) ofthis section. Upon termination 
of employment, the participant shall receive the total DROP benefits and begin to receive 
the previously determined normal retirement benefits. Employment in the DROP does not 
guarantee employment for the specified period of DROP. 

(1) Eligibility of member to participate in the DROP. All retirement system members are 
eligible to elect participation in the DROP provided that election to participate is made 

Ordinance No. 2014-8056 Page 4 of7 



prior to June 23. 2014 and on or after the member fust reaches normal retirement date 
or age. The member shall advise the city and the retirement system in writing of the 
date on which the DROP shall begin. The DROP shall be closed to new members on 
June 23. 2014. 

* * * 
(6) Back-DROP. Effective June 23, 2014, and subject to the provisions of this section, 

eligible members may elect to participate in the Back-DROP in accordance with this 
subsection (6). 

a. Eligibility of member to participate in the Back-DROP. A member who is employed 
and not participating in DROP on June 23, 2014, and continues employment 
beyond the normal retirement date. and any member who reaches normal retirement 
eligibility on or after June 23, 2014, and continues employment beyond the normal 
retirement date, is eligible to elect the Back-DROP. The member shall advise the 
city and the retirement system in writing of their Back-DROP election prior to 
separation from employment. A member may elect the Back-DROP only once. 

b. Back-DROP date. A member's Back-DROP date shall be a date selected by the 
member that is on or after the member's normal retirement date but no more than 
thirty six (36) months prior to their separation date. 

c. Maximum Back-DROP Period. An eligible member may elect the Back-DROP for a 
maximum period of thirty-six (36) months. 

d. Benefits payable under the Back-DROP. A member who elects the Back-DROP 
shall be entitled to a monthly pension determined as of the member's Back-DROP 
date, plus a lump sum payment equal to the pension benefits the member would 
have received had he/she retired on the Back-DROP date, with interest at the rate of 
3% per annum. The member's monthly benefit will be actuarially adjusted to 
reflect the lump sum payment. The lump sum Back-DROP benefit, less applicable 
withholding taxes, shall be distributed to the member within 60 days following 
separation from employment. Alternatively, a member may elect to roll some or all 
of the lump sum Back-DROP benefit into an IRA or other qualified retirement plan, 
in accordance with applicable law. 

(§/-}Forfeiture of retirement benefits. Nothing in this section shall be construed to remove 
DROP or Back-DROP participants from the scope of Section 8(d). Art. II of the State 
Constitution, and Section 112.3173, Florida Statutes. DROP and Back-DROP 
participants who commit a specified felony offense while employed will be subject to 
forfeiture of all retirement benefits, including DROP and Back-DROP benefits, 
pursuant to those provisions of law. 

rn.+)Administration of program. The board of trustees shall make such rules as are necessary 
for the effective and efficient administration of this subsection. The retirement system 
shall not be required to advise members of the federal tax consequences of an election 
related to the DROP or Back-DROP. but may advise members to seek independent 
advice. 

Ordinance No. 20 14-8056 Page 5 of7 



SECTION 5. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 
Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-l 63. l 9A, Early retirement, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-163.19A. Early retirement. 

(a) Early retirement date. A member's The early retirement date for members who retire on or 
before June 23, 2014 and members who have attained age fifty (50) with ten (10) or more 
years of credited service, or twenty (20) years of credited service regardless of age. on or 
before June 23, 2014, shall be the first day of any month coincident with or next following 
the member's completion of twenty (20) years of service, or the attainment of age fifty (50) 
with the completion of ten (10) years of service. Members who have not attained age fifty 
(50) with ten (10) or more years of credited service, or twenty (20) years of service 
regardless of age on or before June 23, 2014 shall not be eligible for early retirement 
benefits. 

(b) Early retirement benefit. A Subject to the eligibility requirements in subsection (a) above. an 
eligible member retiring hereunder or after the member's early retirement date but before the 
member's normal retirement date shall receive the monthly benefit level provided in section 
2-163.9 reduced to take into account the member's younger age and the earlier 
commencement of income payments. Such reduction shall not exceed three (3) percent per 
year for the years and fractional parts of years that the early retirement date precedes the 
normal retirement date. The early retirement benefit shall commence no sooner than the 
member's early retirement date and shall be paid under the forms of payment set forth in 
section 2-1 63.10 

SECTION 6. That Chapter 2, Administration. Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 
Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163.20, Member contributions, to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 2-163.20. Member contributions. 

Member contributions to the retirement system prior to October 2, 2000 shall be seven and 
ninety-five hundreds (7.95) percent of compensation for services rendered,.:. Effective October 2. 
2000 through June 22. 2014, thereafter member contributions shall be six and forty-five 
hundreds (6.45) percent of compensation for services rendered. Effective June 23. 2014, 
member contributions shall be seven and ninety-five one-hundredths (7.95) percent of 
compensation for services rendered. 

SECTION 7. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 6, Police 
Officers' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Ordinance No. 20 14-8056 Page 6 of7 



Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-163.31 , Reserve for pension payments, to read as 

follows: 

Sec. 2-163.31 . Reserve for pension payments. 

* * * 

(b) A majority of the city's police officers having approved the placement of the income from 

Chapter 185, Florida Statutes, premium tax into the retirement system for payments received by 

the city from the State of Florida pursuant to Chapter 185, Florida Statutes, such income shall 
therefore be paid to the retirement system and credited to the reserve for pension payments. All 

moneys received pursuant to such chapters shall be used exclusively to finance the benefits of 
members who are police officers as provided by such chapter. However, local law plans in effect 
on October 1, 1998, shall be required to comply with the minimum benefits of Chapter 185, 

Florida Statutes, only to the extent that additional premium tax revenues become available to 
incrementally fund the cost of such compliance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective June 

23. 2014. the City and Fraternal Order of Police have agreed, and a majority of the city's police 
officers have approved the agreement, that all accumulated additional premium tax revenues as 

reflected in the October l, 2012 actuarial valuation, shall be used to reduce the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability of the retirement system. 

* * * 

SECTION 8. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances m conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

SECTION 9. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption in 
accordance with the Charter of the City of Jacksonville Beach, except as otherwise specified 
above. 

SECTION 10. That this Ordinance was passed on the first reading at a regular meeting of the 
City Council on the __ day of __ 2014, and adopted on the second/final reading at a regular 
meeting of the City Council on the __ day of __ 2014. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Judy L. Bullock, City Clerk 

Ordinance No. 20 14-8056 Page7of7 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

City of MEMORANDUM 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6263 

Fax: 904.247.6169 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: George D. Forbes, City Manager 

FROM: Karen Nelson, Human Resources Director 

SUBJECT: Ordinance Number 2014-8057, Amending Chapter 2, Article V, 

Division 7, 'Firefighters' Retirement System', of the Code of 

Ordinances 

DATE: June 4, 2014 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8057, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 7, 

'Firefighters' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Jacksonville Beach. 

BACKGROUND 

In order to create a sustainable and fiscally responsible retirement system, the 

City proposed certain changes to the Firefighters' Retirement Plan. On May 30, 

2014, the International Association of Firefighters (IAFF), Local 2622 held a 

ratification vote among its members approving the proposed changes. Ordinance 

Number 2014-8057 amends the Plan according to the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement as follows: 

• Provides for a maximum benefit of 90% of final average compensation or 

$90,000 annually, whichever is less. 

• Increases the vesting period from 5 years to 1 O years. 

• Eliminates the early retirement benefit. 

• Excludes overtime pay from pensionable compensation. 

• Replaces the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) with Backdrop. 

• Eliminates the Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for employees hired 

after the effective date. 



Memorandum to George D. Forbes 

June 4, 2014 

Page 2 of 2 

• For current employees: Preserves the 2% COLA for benefits earned as of 

the effective date; provides for a 1 % COLA for benefits earned after the 

effective date. 

• Increases the employee contribution from 6.45% to 7.95%. 

• Provides for all accumulated premium tax revenues to be used to reduce 

the unfunded actuarial liability of the plan. 

The City's proposal preserves the current Defined Benefit Plan and the 3% 

multiplier. Employees with ten years or more of service on the effective date will 

retain the current retirement dates and employees age 50 with 10 or more years 

of service on the effective date will retain the current early retirement benefit. See 

the attached schedule of current and proposed benefits for details. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance Number 2014-8057, amending Chapter 2, Article V, Division 7, 

'Firefighters' Retirement System', of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Jacksonville Beach. 



Benefit 

Benefit Formula 

Normal 
Retirement Date 

Early Retirement 

Pensionable Pay 

Vesting 

DROP 

COLA 

Employee Contribution 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
FIREFIGHTERS PENSION PLAN 

Current Amended by Ordinance Number 2014-8057 

3% - first 30 years; 2% thereafter 3% for all years of service 
$90,000 or 90% maximum 

Age 52 with 25 years of service; or Age 52 with 25 years of service; or 
Age 55 with 5 years of service; or Age 55 with 10 years of service; or 

30 years of service regardless of age 30 years of service regardless of age 

Age 50 with 10 years of service None 

Base pay + incentive pay + overtime + 
Base pay+ incentive pay+ longevity, but excluding overtime longevity pay 

5 years 10 years 

36 months - 3.5% interest Replace with 3 year Back DROP - 3% interest 

No COLA for new hires 
2% annual increase For current employees: 2% COLA on benefits earned as of 

effective date; 1 % COLA for benefits earned after the effective date 

6.45% 7.95% 



Introduced By:----------
1st Reading: _________ _ 
2nd Reading: _________ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-8057 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DMSION 7, 
FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM, OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, AMENDING 
SECTION 2-164.2, DEFINITIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.7, 
NORMAL RETIREMENT CONDITIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.8, 
VESTED TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP; AMENDING SECTION 
2-164.9, AMOUNT OF A PENSION; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.19A, 
EARLY RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.20, MEMBER 
CONTRIBUTIONS; AMENDING SECTION 2-164.31, RESERVE FOR 
PENSION PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 
Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.2, Definitions, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-164.2. Defmitions: 

As used in this division: 

* * * 
Compensation means the salary or wages paid a member for personal services rendered the 

city while a member of the retirement system. Salary and wages shall include longevity pay; 
overtime pay, shift differentials; incentive pay, pay for periods of absence from work by reason 
of vacation, holiday, and sickness; and deferred compensation amounts under deferred 
compensation programs recognized by the board of trustees. Compensation shall not include any 
remuneration or reimbursement not specifically stated to be included, such as allowances for 
clothing, equipment, cleaning, and travel; reimbursement of expenses; bonuses; termination of 
pay; severance pay; payments in consideration of unused vacation or sick leave; and the value of 
fringe benefits. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, a member's annual compensation in 
excess of the limitations set forth in Section 401(a)(l 7) of the Internal Revenue Code shall be 
disregarded. However, for those members who commence participation in the retirement system 
prior to the first plan year beginning after December 31 , 1995, the limitation on compensation 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page I of8 



shall not be less than the amount that was allowed to be taken into account under the retirement 
system as in effect on July 1, 1993. Effective July 21. 2014. compensation shall include base 
pay. longevity pay, and incentive pay; and shall exclude overtime pay. leave payouts and all 
other compensation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments for overtime accrued as of July 
21. 2014 and attributable to service earned prior to July 21. 2014, shall be included in 
compensation even if payment is not made until on or after that date. 

* * * 

SECTION 2. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 

Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.7, Normal retirement conditions, to read as 

follows: 

Sec. 2-164.7. Normal retirement conditions. 

(a) An individual may retire upon satisfaction of each of the following requirements: 

(1) A written application for retirement, in the form established by the board of trustees, has 
been filed with the retirement system. 

(2) Membership is terminated prior to the date of retirement. 

(3) The individual meets an applicable age and/or service requirement for normal 
retirement. 

(b) The age and/or service requirements for normal retirement are: 

(1) ~For individuals with ten (10) or more years of credited service on July 21. 2014. or 
who have attained age fifty-five (55) with five or more years of credited service on that 
date: iflaivia\:lftl has aaaiftea age fifty-five (55) YeftfS or older withaBEI has five (5) or 
more years of credited service, or the iflaivia\:lftl has aaainea age fifty-two (52) or older 
withana has twenty-five (25) or more years of credited service~ or the individual has 
attained thirty (30) years of credited service regardless of age. 

(2) Except as provided in subsection (b)(l) above. for individuals with less than ten (10) 
years of credited service on July 21. 2014, and individuals hired on or after that date: 
age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited service. or age fifty-two (52) 
with twenty-five (25) or more years of credited service. or the individual has attained 
thirty (30) years of credited service regardless of age. 

( c) Upon retirement as provided in this section, an individual shall be paid a pension computed 
according to section 2-164.9 

SECTION 3. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 

Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.8, Vested termination of membership, to 

read as follows: 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 2 of8 



Sec. 2-164.8. Vested termination of membership. 

A member who has five (5) or more years of credited service on July 21 , 2014 and who 
thereafter ceases to be a member, for a reason other than retirement or death, shall be a vested 
former member if the memeer A.as fi'>'e (5) er mere years ef ereEliteEI serviee et the time 
memeersftip termffiates. A member who has less than five (5) years of credited service on July 
21. 2014, and members hired on or after that date, who cease to be a member, for a reason other 
than retirement or death. shall be a vested former member if the member has ten (10) or more 
years of credited service at the time membership terminates. A vested former member may retire 
upon satisfaction of the requirements of section 2-164. 7. The benefit programs applicable to a 
vested former member shall be determined as of the date of termination of membership and shall 
not be affected by any subsequent change in benefit programs. In the event that a vested former 
member shall die from any cause before that member is eligible to retire as provided by section 
2-164.7, then in that event the benefits of this Act granted to non-duty, death-in-service 
automatic survivor's pension shall go to the surviving beneficiaries of the vested former member. 

SECTION 4. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 

Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.9, Amount of a pension, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-164.9. Amount of a pension. 

(a) (1) The amount of pension under optional Form of Payment I pursuant to section 2-1 64.10 
shall be equal to the sum of separate amounts determined in accordance with the benefit 
formula applicable to each retirement system for which the retiring individual has 
credited service in force. 

(2) The amount of pension attributable to credited service under a particular retirement 
system shall be equal to a fraction of the amount of pension determined as if the 
individual's total credited services were under the retirement system. The fraction shall 
be the individual's credited service under the retirement system over the individual's 
total credited service. 

(b) The benefit formula is: 

(1) For retirements with an effective date prior to October 1, 1990, two and one-half (2Yi) 
percent of final average compensation multiplied by credited service, to a maximum of 
seventy-five (75) percent of final average compensation. For retirements with an 
effective date after September 30, 1990, three (3) percent of final average compensation 
multiplied by credited service, to a maximum of thirty (30) years, at which time the 
benefit will be reduced to two (2) percent of final average compensation multiplied by 
credited service for each additional year of service, subject to the limitations of F.S. § 
112.65. 

(2) Effective July 21. 2014. for individuals who are not eligible for normal retirement in 
accordance with Sec. 2-164.7(b)(l) on that date, three (3) percent of final average 
compensation multiplied by credited service, for all years of credited service earned on 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 3 of 8 



and after July 21. 2014. subject to the maximum benefit provided in paragraph (3) 

below. Such individuals shall retain their accrued benefits based on credited service 
earned prior to July 21. 2014. 

(3) Effective July 21. 2014. the maximum benefit shall be ninety (90%) percent of final 
average compensation or $90.000 annually. whichever is less; provided, any individual 
who has accrued a benefit percentage in excess of ninety (90%) percent or an annual 
benefit of more than $90.000 on July 21. 2014 shall retain that accrued benefit. but shall 
not accrue any additional benefit percentage after that date. 

~ Notwithstanding the above, there shall be a minimum monthly benefit provided to 
retirants who have been retired for thirty (30) or more years or have accumulated ten 
(10) or more years of credited service, as periodically established by the city. Such 
monthly benefit shall be reduced by the applicable survivor benefit as elected by the 
retirant pursuant to section 2-164.10. The city shall make deposits into the firefighters' 
retirement system equal to the full annual cost of such increase in benefit payments to 
achieve said minimum monthly benefit. 

( c) Payment of a pension granted under the provisions of section 2-164. 7 with respect to normal 
retirement shall be suspended if the retirant becomes employed by the city. Suspension of 
payment shall become effective the first day of the calendar month coincident with or next 
following employment. Payment of the pension shall resume, without change in amount or 
conditions by reason of the employment, on the first day of the calendar month next 
following termination of employment. The employed retirant shall be a member during the 
period of employment following retirement. 

( d) Notwithstanding the provisions of this act, a member may not receive a benefit, which 
exceeds the maximum amount allowed under Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code, 
which is incorporated herein by reference. 

( e) Deferred Retirement Option Program. In general, and subject to the provisions of this 
section, the Deferred Retirement Option Program, hereinafter referred to as the DROP, is a 
program under which an eligible member of the retirement system may elect to participate 
prior to July 21. 2014, deferring receipt of retirement benefits while continuing employment 
with the city. The deferred monthly benefits shall accrue in the reserve for pension payments 
fund on behalf of the participant, plus interest compounded monthly, for the specified period 
of the DROP participation, as provided in subsection (e)(3) of this section. Upon termination 
of employment, the participant shall receive the total DROP benefits and begin to receive 
the previously determined normal retirement benefits. Employment in the DROP does not 
guarantee employment for the specified period of DROP. 

(1) Eligibility of member to participate in the DROP. All retirement system members are 
eligible to elect participation in the DROP provided that election to participate is made 
prior to July 21. 2014 and on or after the member first reaches normal retirement date or 
age. The member shall advise the city and the retirement system in writing of the date 
on which the DROP shall begin. The DROP shall be closed to new members on July 21. 
2014. 

* * * 
(6) Back-DROP. Effective July 21. 2014. and subject to the provisions of this section. 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 4 of8 



eligible members may elect to participate in the Back-DROP in accordance with this 
subsection (6). 

a. Eligibility of member to participate in the Back-DROP. A member who is employed 
and not participating in DROP on July 21. 2014. and continues employment beyond 
the normal retirement date, and any member who reaches normal retirement 
eligibility on or after July 21. 2014. and continues employment beyond the normal 
retirement date. is eligible to elect the Back-DROP. The member shall advise the 
city and the retirement system in writing of their Back-DROP election prior to 
separation from employment. A member may elect the Back-DROP only once. 

b. Back-DROP date. A member' s Back-DROP date shall be a date selected by the 
member that is on or after the member' s normal retirement date but no more than 
thirty six (36) months prior to their separation date. 

c. Maximum Back-DROP Period. An eligible member may elect the Back-DROP for a 
maximum period ofthirtv-six (36) months. 

d. Benefits payable under the Back-DROP. A member who elects the Back-DROP 
shall be entitled to a monthly pension determined as of the member's Back-DROP 
date, plus a lump sum payment egual to the pension benefits the member would 
have received had he/she retired on the Back-DROP date. with interest at the rate of 
3% per annum. The member' s monthly benefit will be actuarially adjusted to 
reflect the lump sum payment. The lump sum Back-DROP benefit. less applicable 
withholding taxes. shall be distributed to the member within 60 days following 
separation from employment. Alternatively. a member may elect to roll some or all 
of the lump sum Back-DROP benefit into an IRA or other gualified retirement plan. 
in accordance with applicable law. 

(&?J.Forfeiture of retirement benefits. Nothing in this section shall be construed to remove 
DROP or Back-DROP participants from the scope of Section 8(d). Art. II of the State 
Constitution, and Section 112.3173, Florida Statutes. DROP and Back-DROP 
participants who commit a specified felony offense while employed will be subject to 
forfeiture of all retirement benefits, including DROP and Back-DROP benefits, 
pursuant to those provisions of law. 

~+)Administration of program. The board of trustees shall make such rules as are necessary 
for the effective and efficient administration of this subsection. The retirement system 
shall not be required to advise members of the federal tax consequences of an election 
related to the DROP or Back-DROP, but may advise members to seek independent 
advice. 

(f) Cost of living adjustment. There shall be a cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the monthly 
benefit of each member employed on July 21 . 2014 and who was employed by the city on 
the day prior to retirement from the city and is receiving benefits under this plan as follows: 

(1) Effective October 1, 2009 the monthly benefit of each individual who retired prior to 
January 1, 2009 shall be increased by two (2) percent as a one-time benefit adjustment. 

(2) The monthly benefit of all individuals who retire on or after January 1, 2009 shall be 
increased by two (2) percent on the second anniversary date of their retirement and each 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 5 of8 



anniversary date thereafter. This annual benefit increase shall also be paid to annuitants 
and beneficiaries of deceased firefighters or deceased retired firefighters, based on the 
date of the deceased firefighter's or deceased retired firefighter's retirement. 

(3) Except as provided herein. for all individuals who are employed on July 21. 2014 and 
who retire on or after that date, the monthly benefit based on credited service earned 
prior to July 21. 2014 shall be increased by two (2) percent on the second anniversary 
date of their retirement and each anniversary date thereafter. The monthly benefit based 
on credited service earned on or after July 21. 2014 shall be increased by one (1) 

percent on the second anniversary date of their retirement and each anniversary date 
thereafter. The provisions of this paragraph (3) shall not apply to members who. as of 
July 21. 2014. had attained age fifty-two (52) with twenty-five (25) years of credited 
service. age fifty-five (55) with five (5) years of credited service, or thirty (30) years of 
credited service regardless of age. 

(4) Members hired on or after July 21. 2014 shall not be eligible for a cost of living 
adjustment. 

SECTION 5. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 
Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164. l 9A, Early retirement, to read as follows: 

Sec. 2-164.19A. Early retirement. 

(a) Early retirement date. A member's The early retirement date for members who retire on or 
before July 21. 2014 and members who have attained age fifty (50) with ten (10) or more 
years of credited service, or twenty (20) years of credited service regardless of age, on or 
before July 21. 2014. shall be the first day of any month coincident with or next following 
the member's completion of twenty (20) years of service, or the attainment of age fifty (50) 
with the completion of ten ( 10) years of service. Members who have not attained age fifty 
(50) with ten (10) or more years of credited service, or twenty (20) years of service 
regardless of age on or before July 21. 2014 shall not be eligible for early retirement 
benefits. 

(b) Early retirement benefit. A Subject to the eligibility requirements in subsection (a) above. an 
eligible member retiring hereunder or after the member's early retirement date but before the 
member's normal retirement date shall receive the monthly benefit level provided in section 
2-164.9 reduced to take into account the member's younger age and the earlier 
commencement of income payments. Such reduction shall not exceed three (3) percent per 
year for the years and fractional parts of years that the early retirement date precedes the 
normal retirement date. The early retirement benefit shall commence no sooner than the 
member's early retirement date and shall be paid under the forms of payment set forth in 
section 2-164.10. 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 6 of8 



SECTION 6. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 
Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.20, Member contributions, to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 2-164.20. Member contributions. 

Member contributions to the retirement system prior to February 5, 2001 , shall be seven and 
ninety-five hundreds percent (7.95%) of compensation,.:. Effective February 5, 2001 through July 
20, 2014, thereafter member contributions shall be six and forty-five hundreds percent (6.45%) 
of compensation. Effective July 21. 2014, member contributions shall be seven and ninety-five 
one-hundredths (7 .95) percent of compensation for services rendered. 

SECTION 7. That Chapter 2, Administration, Article V, Employee Benefits, Division 7, 
Firefighters' Retirement System, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
Florida, is hereby amended to amend Section 2-164.31 , Reserve for pension payments, to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 2-164.31 . Reserve for pension payments. 

* * * 

(b) A majority of the city's firefighters having approved the placement of the income from 
Chapter 175, Florida Statutes, premium tax into the retirement system for payments received by 
the city from the State of Florida pursuant to Chapter 175, Florida Statutes, such income shall 
therefore be paid to the retirement system and credited to the reserve for pension payments. All 
moneys received pursuant to such chapter shall be used exclusively to finance the benefits of 
members who are Firefighters as provided by such chapters. However, local law plan in effect on 
October 1, 1998, shall be required to comply with the minimum benefits of Chapter 175, Florida 
Statutes, only to the extent that additional premium tax revenues become available to 
incrementally fund the cost of such compliance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, effective July 
21. 2014, the City and International Association of Firefighters have agreed, and a majority of 
the city' s firefighters have approved the agreement, that all accumulated additional premium tax 

revenues as reflected in the October l, 2012 actuarial valuation, shall be used to reduce the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the retirement system. 

* * * 

SECTION 8. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances m conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

SECTION 9. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption in 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 7 of8 



accordance with the Charter of the City of Jacksonville Beach, except as otherwise specified 
above. 

SECTION 10. That this Ordinance was passed on the first reading at a regular meeting of the 
City Council on the __ day of __ 2014, and adopted on the second/final reading at a regular 
meeting of the City Council on the __ day of __ 2014. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Judy L. Bullock, City Clerk 

Ordinance No. 2014-8057 Page 8 of 8 


